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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Ontario, Oregon

We have audited the accompanying financial slatements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Ontario, Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Ontario,
Oregon’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
stalements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrofler General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and performn the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of materal
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

The City does not have adequate detail for the amounts reporied as net depreciable
capital assets in their governmental activities, business-type aclivities, and the Public
Works major fund. We were unable o satisfy ourselves by other auditing procedures
regarding the cost of these capital assets and the related accumulated depreciaiion and
depreciation expense as reported in the financial siatements. The amount by which this
departure would affect the assets, net assets, and expenditures in governmental
activities, business-type activities and the Public Works major fund is not reasonably
determinable.

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been
determined to be necessary had we been able to examine sufficiently detailed evidence
regarding the cost of capital assets, the related accumulzied deprecizfion, and
deprecialion expense for the governmental aclivilies, business-type activities and the
Public Works major fund, the financial statements referred to above present fairdy, in all
malerial respects, the respective financial position of the governmental aclivities, the
business-type activities, and the Public Works major fund of the City of Onfario, Cregon,
as of Juns 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

A

Members of: American Instituie of Certified Public Accoumants
Mational Association of Certified Valuation Analysts
Dregon Sociely of Certified Public Accourants



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the General fund, Street fund,
Capital Projects fund and the aggregale remaining fund information of the City of
Ontario, Oregon, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparisons for the
General fund and Street fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amanca,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 17, 2010, on our consideration of the City of Ontario, Oregon’s internal
control over financial reparting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agresments and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our festing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considerad in assessing the resulls of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages a through [ s not a required parl
of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary informalion required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inguiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and exprass no

opinion on it.

Our audit was conducled for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City of Ontario, Oregon's basic financial stalements. The
accompanying financial and supplemental information as listed in the table of contents s
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The financial information listed as supplemental information in the
table contents have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of tha
basic financial statemants and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Doy anel Ftreptt, LLP

Dickey and Tremper, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

December 17, 2010






City of Ontario Oregan
Management's Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2009

www.ontariporegon.org

As management of the City of Ontario, Oregon, (City) we offer readers aof the City's financial stalements this
namrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Cily for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, This
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based upan currently known facts, decisions, and condilions
thal exisled as of the date of the independent auditor's reporl.

The emphasis of discussions aboul these statements will be on current year data. This information is provided for
use in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

4 The assels of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $53,898,994 (nel
assals). Of this amount, $10,140,651 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and credilors

2 At the end of the currenl fiscal year, unreserved and undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was
$2,871,090.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consisis of a series of financial stalements. The Statement of Net Assals and the Statement of
Activities provide information aboul the activities of the City as a whole and presen! a longer-term view of the
City's finances. Fund financial siatements tell how these services were financed in the short tarm as well as what
remains for future spending. Fund financial slalements also report the Cily's operaiions in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds. The remaining
statements provide financial information aboul aclivities for which the Cily acts solely as a trustee or agent for the
benefit of those outside of the government.

This discussion and analysis is infended to serve as an intreduction to the City's basic financial slalements
These basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial ststements, and 3) noles lo the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addilion to the basic financial statements themselvas.

Reporting the City as a Whole
Tha Siatament of Net Assats and the Statement of Aclivitias

One of the most important guestions asked about the City's finances is, "ls the Cily as a whole batter off or worse
off as a resull of this year's activiies? The Statemenl of Nel Assels and the Staternent of Activities report
information about the City as a whole and about its aclivities in a way that helps answer this question. These
statements include all assate and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most privale-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and sxpenses are taken
info account regardiess of whan cash is received or paid.

Thesa two staternents repart the City's net assels and changes in them. You can think of the City’s net assets -
the difference betwesn assels and liabilities — as one way o measure the Cily's financial health, or financial
posilion. Over time, increases or decreasas inthe City's nel assels are one indicator of whether its financial



heafth is improving or delerioraling. You will need to consider other non-financial faclors, however, such as
changes in the City's property tax base and the condilion of the Cily's roads, lo assess the overall health of the
City.

The Slatemenl of Met Assets and the Statement of Activilies present information aboul the following:

£ Governmental activities — All of the Cily's basic services are considered to be governmental activities,
including general govarnment, communily development, public safety, culture and recreation, and highways
and streets. Property taxes, intergovemnmental revenues, transient occupancy taxes, user fees, and franchise
fees finance most of these aclivities.

* Business-Type aclivities = Operation of the City's utility syslem and the golf course are considered to be
business-type aclivities, whereby all or a significant portion of the cost of operation is intended to be
recovered through user fees and charges. The Cily's business-type activities are waler, sewer, slorm, and

golf.

4= Componant units = The City's governmental activities do not include any separate legal enlities for which the
City is financially accountable, therefore, the Cily is considered a single entity without any componant units.

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Stafements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the moslt significant funds = not the City a2 a
whole. Some funds are required o be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City
Council, with the help of the City's Budgel Committee, establishes many olher funds to help it control and manage
money for particular purposes or fo show that il is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants,
and other money. The City's two kinds of funds — governmental and proprietary — use different accounling

approaches,

< Governmental funds — Most of the City's basic services are reported in govermnmental funds, which focus on
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left gt year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified acorual accounting, which measures
<cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converied to cash.

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed shor-ferm wiew of the City's general government
operations and the basic services It provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether
thare are more or less financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs.
We describe the relafionship (or differences) betwean governmental sciivities (reported in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Stalement of Activilies) and governmental funds in a reconciliation section that follows the
fund financial stataments.

% Proprietary funds = When the City charges for cartain services il provides, lhese servicas are generally
reported In proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in
the Slalement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activitizs.



THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Our analysis focuses on lhe net assets and changes in nel assets (Tables 1a and 2a) and the Cily's
governmental and business-type aclivities (Tables 1b and 2b).

Table 1a
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009

Governmental Activities

FY 20048 FY 2008
Current and other assets 5 10,453 526 £ 10,255,682
Capital azssets (net of accumulated
depresialion) 5,284 350 7. 650 066

Total Assets 18,791,676 17,814,748
Current Liabilities 1,024 488 1,223,748
Moncurrent Fabilities:

Due within ona year 115,691 BB, 046

Ce in more than one year 541,745 f26,708

Total Liabilities 1,779,924 1,540,503
MET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debi 4542 914 6,942,311

Festricted for:

Debt service 328,274 329,597

Streets 196,156 410,080

System Developmeni 2,108,303

Othar 364 618 344 B70
Unrestrictad (deficit) 6,431 GRY 7,042 377

Total Net Assets 5 13,971,952 3 15,974,245

Total Liab & Net Assets § 15.751.876 b 17,914,745

The City's net assets from governmental activities decreased 12.5% from $15,974,245 to £13,971,852 This
decresse of $2,002,293 comes from the change in net assets as recorded in the Statement of Activities and flows
through the Statement of Net Assels. The following 1s an explanation of the changes befween fiscal years as
shown in Table 1a:

< Current and other assets increased by $197.844 which is made up of decreased interest revenues and
increased franchise revenue in the General Fund, decreased revenues in the Grant Fund due to fewer granis,
and an increase in the Capital Projects Fund revenue.

< Capital assets experienced a net decrease (net of depreciation and disposition) of §2,306,716 principally due
to depreciation exceeding capital additions and completed work in progress from the prior fiscal vear being
transferred fo the business type activities.



% Long-term debl increased by $36.681 due to a combination of new debl for the Rescue One vehicle, a

change in the balance of compensaled absances, and the payment of principal an the existing debt over the
course of the year.

Invesied in capilal assels net of debl decreased by 5239 million due to deprecialion exceading capilal
additions.

Unrestricied nal assets, the part of net assets thal can be used to finance day-lo-day operations without
constraints established by debl covenants or other legal requirements, changed from $7.94 million at June 30,
2008 to $6.43 million at tha end of this year. Tha net decrease of $1.5 million is due principally to a decreasza
in cash in Streets, and a reclass of funds restricted for system development. The larger depreciation
expenseas 1o the General and Street fund are related to the GASE 34 reporting requiremeants,

Table 2a
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009
Business-type Activities
FY 2009 FY 20:08
Current and other assels $ 5,250,616 & 4882120
Capital azzets (net of accumulated
depreciation) 49,585,656 50,203,273
Total Assets 54,836,272 55,085,393
Long-term debt oulstanding (less current portion) 13,167,910 13,562,874
Other liabilities 1,721,320 1,587,722
Total Liabilities 14,909,230 15,150,596
et Assels:
Invested in capital azsets, net of
related debi 35,251,318 35,634,108
Restricted for debt service 966,759 1,208,375
Unrestricted (Deficit) 3,708,964 3,002,314
Total Net Assats & 39927042 § 39934797
Total Liab & Met Assets E 54.836.272 $ 550852393

The City's nat assels from business-type aclivities decreased by 0.02% from $38,934 797 (o §30,927,042. This
decrease of $7,755 comes from the change in net assets as recorded in the Statement of Activities and flows

through the Statament of Nat Assets. The following is an explanation of the changes betwean fiscal years as
shown in Tabla Za:

<

-

Current and othar assets increased by $368,496 principally due fo an increased beginning cash position in
{he Public Works Fund.

Capital assets decreased (net of depredation and disposition) by $617.6817 principally due to capital iterns
previously classified as work in progress status (not yet capitalized) from the prior year that are now
completed, the sale of a surplus parcel of land, and depreciation exceading new vear additions.,

Long-term debt decreased by $374,964 due lo a combination of completed capilal assets and debt being
placed in the business-type funds that were in work in progress from the prior year, net of principal payments
ower the course of the year.



4+ Unrestricied nel assels, the parl of net assets that can be used lo finance day-to-day operations withoul
canstraints establizhed by debt covenants or other legal requirements, changed from §3.09 million al June 30,
2009 1o $3.71 milion at the end of this year. The net increase al §516.650 is due principally to a decrease in

liabilities and a decrease in required debt service resiricted assets during the year.

[This area intentionally left blank. ]



Fiscal Year 2008 Governmental Activities
(See Table 1b)

Sources of Revenue
Propery Taxes, Charges for Services

Property Taxes, %-1-1 Taxes &
Agency Contracls

Slale Streel Tax & Public Warks
Franchize Fass

Property Taxes, Transient Room Taxes

Functional Expenses
General Government
Adminisirative & Communily Developmern!

Public Safety
Police, Firg & 9-1-1

Highways and Streets
Sirest Department

Cullure & Recrealion

& Charges for Services Aquatic, Parks & Recreation
VE&C & Cultura! Center (TRT Onfy)
Table 1b
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities
FY 2009 FY 2008
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services 3 500,414 $ 618,446
Operating Grantz & Contributions 1,099,552 1,370,220
Capital Grants & Contributions 629 352 1.554 9268
General Revenues:
Taxes
Property Taxes 2,054,201 2 B36 851
Franchise Taxes 1,850,502 1,604,226
Interest and Investmeant Earnings 176,722 286,077
Miscellaneous 32979 94 737
Gain (loss) on disposition of capilal assels 8,750 (B,391)
Transfers {80,416) 176,755
Total Revenues and Transfars b 7272146 g 8532 B4T
Expenses
General Government 2,011,594 1,532 888
Public Safety 4,031,035 3,854 965
Highways and Streets 1,929,606 5,148,773
Culture and Recreation 1,260,191 1,255,415
Interest on Long-Term Debt 42013 31,858
Total Expenses § 9,774,439 $ 11,823,897
Increase (decrease) in Net Assets 3 (2,002,293} £ (3,291,050)

The City's total revenues from Governmental Activilies decreased from a year ago by $1,260,701 (-14.77%) whila
the total cost of all programs and services decreased by 32 549 456 (-21.56%). The major decreases in revenues




came from both capilal and operaling granls and confributions, and decreased transfers info the Capital Projects
fund from the Public Weorks Fund.

Governmental Activities

Table 1c presents the cost of each of the City's five largest programs — general government, public safety,
highways and streets, culture and recreation, and inlerest on long-term debt — as well as each program’s nef cosl
{tolal cost less revenues generaled by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed
either on the City's taxpayers, or new debt (highways and streets only) by each of these funclions.

Tahle 1c
HET COST OF GOVERNMEMNTAL ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2000
TOTAL COST OF SERVICES HET COST OF SERVICES
FY 2008 FY 2008 FY 2007 FY 2003 FY 2008 FY 2007
General Government 2011534 1532 688 1,557,216 (1,180.300) 57E.773 114,723
Fubic Safaty 4,031,035 3854 865 1,606,674 (1.417.075) (3.258,427) [3,059,503)
Highways and Sireels 1,529 605 5,148,773 3,070,438 (1.301.078) (4,545,205 {3,857 552
Culture and Recazlion 1,260,191 1255415 1,280,513 (1,004,635) (1,022,590) {366,704)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 42013 31,855 6,843 {42,013} {31.656) 136,543
Totals 3 8977443 § 11,823,897 8 11,571,835 § [06955121) 5 (6.280.305) 5 [7.806.279)

¥ The decraasa in the net cost of services for general government is a reflection of the dacreased capital grant
funding for airport improvemeants.

% Decreased cosis in highways and sireets reflect the completion of improvement projects within the Capital
Projects and Sireel Funds in prior years and fewer projects during the current year.

< The nel cost of services indicates that the overall cost of government is grealer than the revenues generaled
lo support if from fees and user charges. This is an indication thal the taxes and general revenues charged
by the City are necessary lo supporl operalions. The largest areas of tax support come from property laxes
of $2,064, 201, franchise taxes of §1 850,502, and sireet (gas) taxes of $435,067. The |argest areas of
operations that require tax support are highways and sireets and public safety, The large capital projecis are
compleled with loan funding to be repaid through future user fees for the water system. See Ihe statement of
Activities for further detail on program revenues and general revenuas.



Fiscal Year 2009 Business-Type Activities

(See Table 2b)
Sources of Revenue Functional Expenses
User Fees Golf Course Operations
General Fund Transfer Golf Debt Service
Utility Fees/Rates Public Weorks
Table 2b
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2009
Business-type Activities
FY 2009 FY 2008
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services - Golf b 168,914 £ 67.915
Charges for Services - Public Works 5,852 202 5811240
Operating Granls & Confribufions (Golf) - 16,100
General Revenues:
Inierest and Investmant Earnings 175,829 310 448
Miscellaneous - -
Transfers 80,416 (176,755)
Tolal Revenues and Transfers $ B,277451 § 6028948
Expenses
Golf 307,211 223,857
Public Works 2,877.084 5,883,158
Total Expenses ¥ 6285208 § 6,106,813
Increase (decrease) in Net Assets $ (7,754) § (T7,865)

The City’s total revenues from Business-Type Activities increased from a year ago by $248 503 (4.12%) while the
total cost of all programs and services increased by §178,392 (2.92%). The major increases in revanues came
from a combination of increased charges for service at the Golf Course as the City began operating the course in
November 2008, decreased inleres! revenue in the Public Works Fund, and increased transfer revenues.



Business-Type Activities

Table 2c presents the cost of each of the City's business-type programs — goll and public works — as well as each
program s nef cost (1otal cost less revenues generaled by the achivities). The net cost shows the financial burden
thal was placed on the City's pubfic works and golf fund balance by each of thase functions

Table 2c
NET COST OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2009

TOTAL COST OF SERVICES MET COST OF SERVICES

FY 2009 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2008
Gaolf 307,211 223,657 (138.297) (139,642)
Public Works 2,977,994 3,883,156 (125,702) {71.816)
Totals 5 6,285,205 5 6,106,813 3 (263,589) 5 (211,558)

% The slighl decrease in the net cost of services for golf s a reflection of operation changes which increased
senvice revenues, but induded sharp Increases in expenditures as the course was undergoing various
improvaments projects.

# The increase in the net cost of services Tor public works is a reflection of the increased expenses within the
fund due to operations and project cosls that were larger than increases in service revenues during the vear.

% The net cost of services indicales that the overall cost of golf and public works operations is greater than the
revenues generaled fo support if from fees and user charges. This is due primarily to public works
operations. This is an indication thal the golf fees and general revenues charged by the Cily are necessary to
support operations, ar this net cost would equal that of the golf expenses. This year the golf operations also
spent slightly more than revenues collecied. See the stalement of Activities for further detail on program
revenues and general revenueas

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

At year-end the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $8 589,232, which is an increase
of $625,644 or 7.66% from last year. This change is due to a combination of an increase in the Capital Projects
Fund fund balance of $787,097, and a slight increase in the General and Grant Fund balance as compared to

2007-2008.

% The General Fund closed the year with a fund balance of $85,224 higher than 2007-2008.

At yearend the City's business-type funds reported combined net assets of $39,927 042, which represents a
decrease of $7,755 or less than one lenth of one percent from last year. This change is due primarily 1o a

decrease in interest earnings and increased intarest expense within the Public Works Fund, and an interfund
payable in the Golf Fund to the General Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Expenditures

The final appropriations for personal services for the General Fund at mid-point were $4,516,326, (when using
50% of the 2007-2009 Biennial Budge!) and actual expenditures were $4,411 288, for a savings of $105,040.

The final apprepriations for malerials and services for the General Fund at mid-point ware §1,001,372, (when
using 50% of the 2007-2009 Biennial Budgel) and actual expenditures were §1,080,302, for a savings of $10,570.

The budget lo actual variance in approprialions was due in part {o staff vacancies and spending cuthacks
throughout the fund. Actual expanditures for the General Fund were $180,704 (2,98%) higher than 2007-2008,



Heavanuas

Actual revenues were less lhan budgeled (when using 50% of 2007-2009 Biennial Budgel) revenues by 34,611 in
2008-2004, due primarily to decreases in interasl eamings,

The General Fund revenues were $529,726 lower than lhe 2007-2008 actual revenues due primarily to the prior
year one-time transfer of $419,800 from the closed telephone franchise revenue trust, and secondarily cdue to a
drastic reduction in interest revenues earned

Public Warks Fund Budgetary Highlights

Expenditures

The final appropriations for personal services for the Public Works Fund at year-end were §1,673,699 (when
using 50% of the 2007-2009 Biennial Budget) and actual expenditures were $1,658,749, for a savings of $13,950.

The final approprialions for materials and services for the Public Works Fund at mid-point were §1,512,813,
{when using 50% of the 2007-2008 Biennial Budget) and sctual expenditures were $1,329 222, for a savings of
$183.5M.

Actual Expenditures for the Public Works Fund were §382 187 (-6.46%) lower than 2007-2008, due to a
combination of increased debt service expanses for new lpans and decreases in capital and material and supply

axpenditures.

Revenues

Actual revenues (when using 50% of 2007-2009 Blennial Budget) were below budgeted revenues by $329,289 in
2008-2000, due principally 1o decreased interest samings and decreased waler service revenues, despite an

increase in sewer service revenues as & result of a change in residential billing methods, and proceeds from the
sale of two surplus properties.

The Public Works Fund revenues were $52 807 (-1.52%) less than the 2007-2008 actual revenues.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2009, the City had $54 884,008 invested in a broad range of capital assels, including
police and fire equipment, bulidings, land, park facilities, roads, water and sewer treatment facliities and
transmission and collection lines, and publiz works equipment. (See Tables 3a and 3b below.) This amount
represents 2 net decrease (including additions, surplus and depreciation) of $2,978,333 (-5.15%) compared to
fiscal year end 2008,

Table 3a
CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities

FY 2009 FY 2008
Land & Const in Progress 5 1,585245 § 2,830,325
Buildings and Improvements 475,561 533,890
Equipment 636,978 672,149
Infrastruciure 2 620 5686 3,622,702

Totals $ 5,286,350 § 7.658.066




Decrease of $2,360,716 (-30.82%) is due lo the transfer of work in progress oul 1o the business-iype activities
and accumulated depreciation totals exceeding new capital additions for 1he fiscal year,

Tabla 3b
CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END
(Net of Depreciation)

Business-type Activities

FY 2008 FY 2008
Land & Const in Progress -3 2,442 147 5 2,451,801
Buildings and Improvements 14,230,684 14,702 050
Equipment 912,291 1,086 751
Infrastructure 32,000,534 31,062,671
Totals $ 40585658 § 50,203,273

Decrease of $617,617 (-1.23%) is due to new capital additions for assels praviously classified as wark in progress
being less than the total accumulaled depreciation for the fiscal year.

An individual listing of assets, cosl, and date acquired has nol been maintained for the City's capilal assels due o
difficulties with the present asset software system, Depreciafion has been calculated on a companent basis,
which takes the entire balance of the cos! basis of the asseis and dividing Dy the estimated useful life for the
categary of assels. Once some of the older assels are fully depreciated, this method can over depreciale the
remaining assets, which should have a remaining life. It appears that accumulated depreciation and depreciation
expense is overstatad for some equipment and infrastructure calegories, and the auditor's have issued a qualified
opinion on this segment of the audit. The City is currently working on a detailed capital asset listing thru the
services of a third parly on infrastructure due 1o the level of detail in pipe siza, type, year of installation, etc. Work
confinues to this end during Fiscal Years 2000 and 2010 and it is anticipated that this detail will be in place by FY
2011.



Debt

Al year-end, the Cily had $15,653,054 in long term liabilities (see Table 4). This represenis a nal dacrease of
$98,018 due payment of principal amounts during the current year.

Table 4
DEBT AT YEAR-END
2009 2008
Gowvernmental activities;
Special Assessment Debt with
Governmantal Commilment 3 581455 5 636832
Contracts, Loans and Motes 173,981 79,923
Compensated Absences 351,422 347,033
Governmental activity
Lang-term liabilities $ 1,106858 £ 1,063,768
Business - type activities:
Certificates of Parlicipation (COP's) § 277,905 § 350,950
Gaolf Course Econ Dey Motle 2,462 4 78S
Water Revenue Bonds 348 738 433,414
Confracts, Loans and Noles 13,701,043 13,771,012
Compensated Absences 127,148 115,120
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities $ 14,546 196 % 14 6B7 285
§ 15.653.054 $ 15,751,073

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The economy of the City Is based primarily on agriculiure, however there are a great deal of retail jobs within
Ontario as it serves as the shopping hub for the Treasure Valley.

The City adopted its second Biennial Budget for 2007-2009. This budget takes into account the projected
property tax rates and valualions, historical trends in transiant occupancy taxes, rate increases as allowed by
ardinance for water services, and the balance of the sewer freatment upgrade projact expandituras.

Fiscal Year 2009 represents the conclusion of the 2007-2009 Biennial Budgel and management slafl have the
opportunity to prepare for a new biennial budgat process which will izke into consideration the recent changes in
fuel and utility prices while altempting to balance currant revenues with current expenses,

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, laxpayers, cuslomers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the City of Ontario's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money il receives,
Il you have questions about this report or need addilional financial information, cantact Rachel Hopper, Finance
Director, 444 SW 4" Street, Ontario, Oregon 97914
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Tolal
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,781,344 § 3429512 % 8,210,855
Investments 760,213 m 760,213
Receivables:
Propearty taxes 235,015 - 235,015
Accounts 58,455 §32,008 590,463
Intergovemmental 263,253 1,160 264,413
Assessmeants 471,762 . 471,762
Notes 532,412 - 532,412
Internal balances 112,038 (112,936) -
Inventories 4,324 368,273 372,587
Restricted assets (lemporary):
Cash and cash equivalents 2,710,843 1,032,599 3,743,442
Invastments 522,969 = 522,969
Capital assets;
Lard 948 024 2,442,147 3,380,171
Construction in progress 617,221 d 617,221
Depraciable assets, nat of depraciation 3,733,105 47,143 500 50,876,614
Total assels 15,751,876 54,836 277 70 588,148
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 388,318 107,341 475,660
Uneamed revenue 47 579 - 47,870
Accrued imerest payable 20,407 189,853 210,260
Compensated absences payable 351,422 127,148 478,570
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Deposits 236 461 65,540 2,3
Long-lerm obligations
Due within one vear 113,691 1,118,202 1,231,893
Dug in more than one year e 641,745 13,300,646 13,842 591
Total Rabilities 1,779,924 14,008,230 16,680 184
MET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of ralated debt 4542974 Jo.2581.318 38,794 233
Restricted for:
Highways and sirests 186,156 : 108,158
System developmeant 2,108 303 - 2,108,303
Debl service 328,274 966,759 1,295,033
Other 364,618 - 364,518
Unrestricted 6,431,687 3,708 954 10,140,651
Tolal net assels § 13971952 § 39027042 $£ 53898004

The neles lo the basic finangial statements are an inlegral part of this statement.
i



CITY OF ONTARI|O, OREGDN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Program Revenuas

Mot (Expensa) Reverwe and
Change in Met Assels

Primary Govamment
Charges Operaling Capital
for Grants and  Granls and  Governmenlal  Business-Type
Funclions/Programs Expenses Saroces Contribuwtions  Cantribulions Activities Aniritles Total
Governmanal activitiss:
General government ¥ 201,584 5§ 260266 § B1.303 F 479TES $(1.180300) 5 § (1,190,300)
Publi: safaty 4,031,035 BB.031 $25.2928 13.417,075) (3,417,075)
Highways and strests 1,929 605 4,439 474 462 149 527 (1,301,078) (1,301,078)
Culture and recreation 1,260,191 237 678 17,858 11,004,655) (1,004.653)
Interest on lang-term abligations 42,013 = 5 (42 013} r42,013)
Total govemmental astivities 0,274,439 414 1,098 552 £20.352 (6,955,121} (6,233,181
Business-type achvilies:
Golf 307,21 168,914 {138,297} (138,297)
Fublic Works 5977004 _ 5 RS2 2O 1125 702 (125702
Total business-type activilies 62852058 _ 6.021.206 < {263,599) [263.808)
Total primary govermment $15558.644 FGH11.620 $1.009952 3 G28.353 _ (6,855,121 {2G3,995) (7.218.120)
General revenues:
Proparty iaxas levied for:
General purposes 2964 301 2 964 281
Franchise and publc services 1=xes 1,850,502 ¢ 1,850,502
Interesi and mvesimant aamings 176,722 175,829 352 551
Miscallansgus 324979 ’ 32979
Gan (loss) on sale of property 8,750 . 4,750
Transfers (20,416 B0.416 5
Total genaral revamues, special dlems, and transfers # G52 B8 256,245 5,208,073
Change in net assels (2,002,293 (7.7534) [2.010,047)
Het azsals, baginning 15,874,245 39,934 726 55,909,041
Met assels, ending §13971,852 § 39977047 § 53,898694

The notes to the basic Ainancial stalaments are an integral par of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for the financial operations of the City not accounted for in any
other fund. Principal sources of revenue are property taxes, franchise fees, holel-molel tax,
and state shared revenues. Expenditures are primarily for Police, Fire, and Geaneral

Operations.
Street Fund

The Street Fund accounts for franchise fees, charges for services, State road taxes and
miscellaneous revenue sources, and expenditures for the maintenance of City streets.

Capital Project Fund

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financing and construction of improvements,
which are paid for, wholly or in part, from special assessments levied against benafited
properties. Other activity includes repair and maintenance of City infrastructure to include
sewer, water, slorm lines and streels.



ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investmanis

Receivahles:
Froperty taxes
Interfund
Accounts
Inlerpovernmental
Assessments
Motas

Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounls payable and
accrued liabilities

Matured inlerest sutstanding

Interfund payable
Deposits
Deferrad revenue

Tetal liabiliies

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Debt service
Sysiem development
Unreserved, reported in:
Major funds
Special revenus funds

Total fund balances

Tatal liabilities and
fund balancas

CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2009
Capital Oither
General Strest Projects Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Tolals
S 2013423 % 235969 § 2800052 S 2442743 5§ T.492.187
760,213 - - 522,969 1,283,182
235015 - - 235,015
189,765 - - - 184,765
6,604 i 43,980 T.871 £8,455
84,887 1.230 7.481 168,655 263,253
= . - 471,762 471,762
- 672,075 672,078
- - - 4,324 4,324
3 EEEBEIIEIEI? g 237 1% § EI-BSI 813 § 4|29 1 IEEI'Q § jﬂ!ﬁ?ﬂiﬂ@
5 215000 % 45438 § 17,286 3 90,525 3 368,219
= ¢ - 3,102 3102
76,629 76,820
= 236 4561 236,461
203817 1,192 258 1 5
418,817 45438 17,285 1,589,245 2,080,785
- s 328,274 328,274
= 2,108,303 . 2,108,303
2,871,090 191,761 725,924 - 3,788,775
- - - 2,363,880 2,363,830
2,871,090 191,761 2,834 227 2692154 8,588,232

5 2289907 § £37.189 § 2851513 § 4,291,309 51&5?021@

The notes o e basic financial Statements are an integral pant of this slatement
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009

Fund balances - total governmental funds 3 8,589,232

Amounts reporled for governmental aclivities in the Statement of Met
Azsels are diffarent becauss:

Capital assets usaed in govemmental activites are not financial
rasourcas, and, therelors, are nof reported in the funds S 795350

Cither lang-term assels are nat available to pay for current perod
expenditures, and, thersfore, are deferred in the fund statements. 1,208 533

Accrued compensaled absences are not due and payable in the current
period, and, therefore, are not reported in the fund statements (351.422)

Accrued interes! payable is not due and payabla in the cumrenl period,
and, therefore, is not reported in the fund stalements. {17.305)

Leng-term liabiities, including bonds and notes payable, are nol due
and payable in the current percd, and, thersfore, are not reparted in the

fund statements. TE5 436)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 13,971,952

The notes o the bacic inancial stalemenls are an integral parl of (his stalement,
d



CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009
Capital Ciher
General Slreet Frojects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Totals
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 2913738 3 R - £ - § 293738
Other taxes as4 M7 d 243,779 578,406
Franchise feas 1,027,014 = = 1.027.019
Licenses and fees 212,514 - - . 212,514
Intergovemmental 658,641 435 088 148 627 240 832 1,494,168
Charges for services 273,390 - 6,024 T.263 286,877
Fines and forfeilures 12.700 - - 8,769 22,469
Special assessments = " 12,202 53,443 73,645
System development charges g . 457,523 g 467,523
Interest on invesiments 86,224 11,463 = 79,035 176,723
Loan repayments J - 68,058 68,058
Miscellaneous 84 387 4,438 2,907 101.733
TOTAL REVENUES 5,623,330 450,870 635,376 715087 7424753
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govermment 1.454 730 6,640 47156 1,508,526
Public safaty 3,313,455 - - 480,524 3,793,980
Highways and streels - B20.479 - 820,470
Culture and recreation 703,903 1 g 435,485 1,139,388
Capital outlay 76,601 164 684 598,085 327,668 1,267,046
Debt service = & S 87,577 BT 57T
TOTAL EXFENDITURES 5,548 690 085,163 T4, 725 1,378,408 8.616.936
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES V4,640 (£34,193) (69,359) {653,321) {1.192.233)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of property E.750 : 8,750
Issuance of debt " 5 B56,456 . B56,456
Transfersin 720,303 393,934 & 641,473 1,755,710
Transfers out (708 469) (B7.070) (7.500) (803 038)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES) 20,584 305.5854 B56,456 633,973 1.817.877
KET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 95,224 (227.320) 787,007 (29,348) 625,644
FUND BALANCE, Beginning 2775 666 419.080 2,047,130 2,721.502 7,563 588

FUND BALANCE, Ending

$ 2871000 § 191761 § 2634237 3 2692154 § 8580232

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral parl of this stalemant
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERMMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Net change in fund balance - governmental funds 5 625,644
Amounts reporied for governmental activities in the Statement of Aclivilies
are different bacause of the following:

Ravenuas in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are nol reporled as revenues in the funds.

Dieferred revenues (220,610)

Repayment of long-term obligations principal is an expenditure in the
govemmental funds, bul the rapayment reduces long-term obligations in
the Staternent of Net Assals. 188,101

Issuance of debt is a finanaial resource in governmeantal funds, but the
issuanca increases long-tarm liabilities in the Stalement of Nel Assels (226,782)

Some expenses reported in the Slalement of Activilies do not require
the use of current financial resources, and are nol reporied as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in compensaled absences {4,389)
Change in acerued inlerast payable (6.,643)

Gavernmental funds report capital outlays as expanditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of capital azsets are allocated
over the useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.,

Capital azzeat additions 713,337

Depreciation expanse {1,555,489)
(B42,152)

The Capital Projects and Reserve Funds received loan proceeds and
expended funds to construct and acquire assets for the enterprise
funds. The debt and capital assets were assumead by lhe

Business-Type Activifias
Issuance of debl (855,456)

Ciebd assumed by Businass-Type Activilies 856,456
Capital assels provided to Business-Type Activities (1,889 ,545)
Current y=ar capital outlay expendilures 374,083

(1,515,452

Change in net assets - governmental activities 5 (2,002,293)

The notes o the basic financial statements are an nlegral part of this slatement
&



REVEMUES
Property taxes
Other faves
Franchise fess

Licenses and fzes
Imtengovermmental
Charges far sarvices
Fines and forfehiuras
Interest on investments

Mizzeflansous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Currert:

General governmen
Fublic safety
Cuilture and recreztion

Capital autlay
Contingancy

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANGING SOURCES

Sale of property
Issuance of debt

Transfers in
Transfers o

TOTAL OTHER FINANGING
SOURCES (USES)

HMET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUMD BALANCE, Ending

“Exempt rom Oregon Budge! Law for 573,434 in capital lease proceeds,

CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GEMNERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2007-2009 Variance with
Budgeted Amounts ist Year 2Znd Year Combinad  Final Budgat -
Actual Actual Actual Posithva
Original Final Amounts Amaounts Amounits (Nagative)

F 5634029 § 5EM879 S2AE234E3 8 2913738 % 573IT2M1 0§ 102297
630,000 &77 800 35774 33a 1y 652,458 14,658
1,845,800 1,845 800D 285,947 1,027,019 2,012,968 167,166
253,070 478,400 255,067 212,514 468,581 (9.819)
1,188,150 1,229,150 GE4 432 GEB.641 1,353,073 123,923
506,540 505,540 284,002 273,390 557,382 50 852
28,000 28,000 20,000 12,700 32,700 4,700
240,000 281 000 186,109 85,224 272,333 (8,667}
134,216 151,216 65,706 84,387 180,093 8,877
10,471,708 10,832 B35 5683 457 5,623,330 11.286.017 453,962
2831373 3,053,125 1,314,089 1,454,730 2,758,789 284 326
6,760,652 €,759,588 3183720 5,315,456 6457176 262,412
1,402,682 1,402 652 Tanr 703,903 1,417,020 [14,335)
163,885 206,518 177,080 76,601 253,681 (47, 163)
1,352,242 _ 1213280 : : : . 1,213,280
12 510,854 1 143 5387 986 SadE BO0 936.676 1,698,517
(2039349} _ (1,802,358) __ 275501 74,640 350,141 152,499
- 5,100 8.750 13,850 13,850

. - 73434 - 73434 3,434
1,881,154 1,881,154 1,140,088 720,303 1,860,301 [20,763)
(1.572.876) (1,809,757} (826,521} (705.468) (1,603,990} 205,777
308,178 71,387 323,101 20,584 343885 272 798
{1,730,571) (1,730,871) 598,602 05224 693,826 24247097
1,730,871 1,730,971 2,177,264 2.775 866 2177.264 445,293
5 . F2V75866 § 2ET000 § 2ETi000 & 287100

The notes 19 e basic financial stalesnents are an integral pad of this stalemend,
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STREET FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2007-2009 Variance with
Budgated Amounts 151 Year Ind Year Combined Final Budget -
Actual Actual Actual Pogitive [
DOriginal Final Arsaunts Ammounts Amounts {Nagative)
REVEMUES
Intergovernmental F1022548 51202848 §5 490453 5 435068 % 825521 §F (EV7.327)
Interest on muestments - 7,113 11,463 18,576 18,578
Miscelaneaus 8,504 4,439 12,942 12948
TOTAL REVENUES 1,022,845 1,202,848 506,075 450,970 957,045 {245,803)
EXPENDITURES
Curmant:
Highways and sireets:
Personal garvices 548 294 848 204 430,203 483 878 Rk | 64,583
Materials and senvices 788,004 807,754 367,885 356,851 724,838 82915
Capital outiay 304,400 478,400 27,106 164,684 435,780 43810
Cantingency : 26,380 . - 3 26,300
TOTAL EXPEHDITURES 2 080 68 2. 251,838 1,059,194 SH5 163 2,044,357 AT 481
REVENUES OVER (UHDER)
EXPENDITURES (1.017,850) _ {1,056,990) (553,119) (534,193} _ (1.087.312) (28.322)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in a02 850 543980 400,325 393,93 TR4.253 (49,731)
Trangfers out [174,130) {174,130} [B7,060] [B7.070) [174,130) .
TAOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES |USES| E28.7 665,820 2122658 306, 864 620,129 {43,731)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGE (389,130 (388,130) (238 B54) (227,329 (467,183 {78,053)
FUND EALANCE, Baginning 388,130 3@9,130 558,544 419,090 B35 944 269.814
FUND BALANCE, Ending 3 3 F 419040 5 191761 % 191,761 3 191,761
— e —m e TR SR AT

The notes o the basic financal stalements are an ntegral part of this sialement.






FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Proprietary Funds

The City of Ontario utilizes two Proprietary Funds comprised of Enferprise Funds.

Enterprise Funds are used o report for aclivities for which a fee is charged io external usears for
goods and services, and to account for the acguisition, operation, and maintenance of the
water, sewer, sform water, and a public golf course. These funds are enfirely or predominantly
self-supported through user charges to the cuslomer, Funds included are:;

*  Golf Course Fund (Mon-Major)
* Public Works Fund {(Major)



CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalanis
Resinicted cash and cash equivalants
Accounts receivable, nel
Intergovemmental
Inventories

Total current assets

Moncumrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land
Depreciable assets, net of depreciation

Tatal noncumeni asssts
Total assals

LIABILITIES AND MET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payablae
Deposits
Accrued interast payable
Interfund payable
Compensated absences payabls
Current porfion of long-lerm dabt

Total current liabilities (unrestricted)

Current abilities (payable from restricted assels);
Depasils

Total curent labilities

Long-term dabl, net of cumrent porfion:
Debl premium
Water revenue bonds payable
Certificates of participation
Contracts, loans and notes payabie

Total long-term Habilities
Total Aabilities

Metf assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related dabi
Restricted for debl service
Unrestriciad { Deficit)

Total net assels

Total liabilities and nel assets

The notes fo the basic financial staternents are an integral part of Iz stateament

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2009

Business - type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nun-Ma'E
Gaolf P ublic
Course Woarks
Fund Fund Tolal
£ - & 3429512 5§ 3,429,512
1,032,599 1,032,549
14,057 517,951 532,008
£ 1,160 1,160
368,273 J68. 273

14057 _ 5349405 _  5363,552

B4 B28 2,357,519 2442147
BO4 633 45,248 676 47,143,508
a79,261 48,606,395 49,585,656

£ 993010 5 53900800 § 54949208

& BOSE § 99285 § 107,341
: 55,840 5,840

4,824 185,028 183,853

112,936 - 112,836

. 127,148 127,148

P+ 111", § 1.027 603 1,118,202
216,415 1,504 905 1,721,320
65,840 65,840

216415 1,504,905 1,721,320
84,711 B4, 711

: 260,058 260,058

188,766 : 189,766

12,766,311 12,766.311
189,788 13,111,080 13,300,846

__ 408181 ___ 14515985 _ 15022166
98,096 234 552 423 35,251,319

: 968,758 066,759

(111.752) 3,820,722 T fid

587,137 39,339,905 30,927,042
4220018 5 53990800 § 54940208




CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROFRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Business - type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Mon-Major
Golf Public
Courge Works
Fund Fund Tatal
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for servicas 3 168,914 % 5762854 3 5931778
Miscallaneoys : 49,428 59,428
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 168 914 5852 282 £.021,208
OPERATING EXPENSES
Pearsonal services B8, 1584 1,668,778 1,734,962
Malerials and services 130,464 1,372,019 1,502 4583
Depreciation 95,324 24813594 2,576,718
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 291972 5,522,181 5,814 163
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) {123,058) 330,101 207 043
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
Gain {loss) on disposal of capital assals 97,161 97,161
Interast on investments . 175,823 175,829
Interast expense (15,239) (562,964) (568,203}
TOTAL HON-OPERATING
INCOME (EXPENSES) {15,239 (279.874) {295,213)
MHET INCOME {LOS5S) BEFORE TRANSFERS (138,297 50,127 (B8.170)
TRANSFERS
Transfers in 108,027 1,033,087 1,142,114
Transfers out Z {1,061.,693) {1.061,698)
TOTAL TRANSFERS 109,027 (28 611) BO 416
CHANGE IN NET A5SETS {29.270) 21,616 (7,754)
NET AS5ETS, Beginning 616.407 20,318,389 39,034 706
MET ASSETS, Ending i 87,137 5 35.3334905 % EQI'&E?‘DAE

The notes o the basic inancial statements are an intearal par of this statemeant.
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Business-lype Activitias - Enterprise Funds

Mon-Major
Goll Fublic
Course Woarks
Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recsipls from customers and users § 155325 § 5978108 § 6.133,433
Payments to suppliers {139,886) (1,379 985) (1,518,851)
Faymenis to employees (66,184) (1,658.750) (1,725,934)
Met cash provided from (used by)
operaling activities (50.745) 2,938,393 2,887 648
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAFITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in 109,027 - 109,027
Transfers out = {1.061,698) (1,061,608)
Met cash provided from [used by)
non-capital financing activitias 109,027 (1,061 68E) (852,671}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of capital assels - 106,815 106,815
Interfund loan proceeads 112,836 - 112,936
Interfund loan payments (5,298) - {5,208)
Acquisition of capilal assets {64,920) (14,289) (79,208)
Principal paid on long-term obligations {64,373) {921,915) (1.005,288)
Interest paid on long-term obligations (16.627) (627.503) (544,130}
Met cash provided from {used by) capital
and relaled financing activilies (58,262} {1.456,892) (1.515,174)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intarest on investments 2 175,829 175,629
MNET INCREASE (DECREASE] IN CASH
AND CAEH EQUIVALENTS . 535,832 595 632
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning = 3,866,472 3,866,479
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Ending $ - % 4462111 5 4462411
COMPRISED AS FOLLOWS:
Cash and cash equivalenis 5 3 $§ 3420512 §F 3429512
Restricted cash and cash equivalenls = 1,032,599 1,032,598
$ - § 4482111 § 4462111

The notes [0 the basic financial statements are an inlegral part of this stalement.
A



CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Business-type Activities - Enlerprise Funds

Mon-Major
Golf Public
Course Works
Fund Fund Totals
Reconciliation of operating income (lass)
to net cash provided from (used by)
operating activities
Operating income (loss) ¥ (123058) $§ 3300 3 207.043
Adjustments to reconcile oparating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operaling activities
Depreciation 983,324 2,451,394 2,576,718
{Increase) decrease in assets:
Receivables (13,589) 112,643 g 054
Inventories - 20,444 20,444
Increase (decrease) in Habilities:
Accounts payable and accruad expanses (9,422} (28,200)] (37,812)
Deposits - 13,173 13,173
Compensated absences payable = 5.025 9,028
o bissieonhiiailicacdd $  (50745) § 2038303 § 2,887,648
NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer of capital assets and debt bebwesn funds 3 - § 1033087 § 1033087

Tha notes Ip the basic financial statements ame an inleégral part of this stalement.
1B






NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Ontario, Oregon (the City) is organized under the general laws of the Slate
of Oregon. The City Council, composed of the mayor and six Council members,
comprises the legislative branch of the City. Individual departments are under the
direction of the City Manager, who is appointed by the City Council.

The accompanying financial statements present all activities, funds and component
units for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The criteria used in
making this determination includes appointment of a voting majority, imposition of will,
financial benefit or burden on the primary government, and fiscal depandency on the
primary government. Based upon the evaluation of this criteria, there are no component
units of the City,

. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activilies) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the
primary govemment. For the most par, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separalely from business-type
activities, which rely lo a significant extent an fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Aclivilies demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program ravenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment Program revenues
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services or privilages provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricled to meeling the operational or capilal requirements
of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other iterns not properly included among
program revenues are reponed instead as general revenuss.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reporied as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded
when & liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
llems are recognized as ravenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met,



Privale-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior 1o December
1, 1989, generally are lollowed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statemenis to the exient that those standards do nol conflict with or contradict
guidance of the Governmeantal Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have
lhe option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
acliviies and enlerprise funds, subject 1o this same limitation, The City has elected nol
to follow subsequent private-secior guidance,

As a general rule the effect of inlerfund activity has been eliminaled from govermment-
wide financial statements. Exceplions fo this general rule are payments-in-lisu of taxes
and other charges between the City’s water and sewer funclion and wvarious other
functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs of
program revenues reporling in the various funclions concarned

Proprietary funds distinguish operafing revenues and expenses from non-gperating
items. Operaling revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges
for customer services including water and sewer charges. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and servicas, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this defintion
are reportad as non-operating revenues and expensas.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Citv's
policy fo use resiricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are

neaded,

Governmental fund financial statements are reporled using the curreni fnancial
resowrces measwemen! focus and the modified acorual basis of accounling. Revenues
are racognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Rewenues are
considered to be avaiable when they are coliectible within the currenl period ar soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues o be available if they are collected within 60 days of tha end of tha
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under acerual accounting. However, debl service expenditures, as well as expendilures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is dus.

The bases of accounting described above are in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Uniled States of America.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund is the City's primary operating fund, It accounts for all financial resources
of the City, excepl those accounted for in another fund. Principal sources of revenue
are property taxes, franchise fees, hotel-motel tax, and state shared revenues.
Expenditures are primarily for general government operations, public safety (police), and
community development.

Streel Fund accounts for franchise fees, charges faor services and miscellaneous
revenue sources, and expenditures for the maintenance of City strests,

Capital projects fund is the City's fund for the accounting of financing and construction
of improvements, which are paid for. wholly or in part. from special assessments levied
against benefited properties.



The City reports the following major proprigtary fund:

Public works fund accounts for costs of services directly related to the operation and
maintenance of the City's ulility services, 10 include water, sewer, storm drain and the
adminisfration of these services.

The City also includes the following fund types as other governmental funds:

Special revenue funds are primarily operating funds that account for revenue derived
from specific taxes or other revenue sources, which are legally restncted to finance
particular functions or aclivities. When a special revenue fund is nol an operating fund,
transfers are made from the special revenue fund to the operating funds autharized to
make expenditures,

Debi service funds account for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term debt for governmental funds,

D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Cily's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition.

The City maintains a common cash and investment pool that is avaitable for use by
all funds. Interest earmed on the pooled cash and investments is allocated monthly
based on the average monthly balances throughout the vear.

The City's investment policies are governed by state statute. The state statutes
authorize the City to invest primarily in general obligations of the U.S. Govermment
and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank
repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, high-grade commercial paper and
the State Treasurer's Investment Pool.

Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool are stated at amortized cost,
which approximaies fair value. All other investments are reporied at fair valua.

2. Receivables and Payables

Transaclions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either
“interfund receivables/payables™ (i.e., the currant partion of interfund loans) or
“advances loffrom other funds” {i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reportad as “due to/from other funds.”
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activites and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances”™.

Property laxes receivable which have been collected within 60 days after year-end
are considered measurable and available and, therefore, are recognized as revenue.
The remaining balance is recorded as deferred revenue because it is nol desmead
available to finance operalions of the current period. An allowance for doubtful
accounts is not deemed necessary, as uncollectible taxes become a lien on the
property. Property laxes are levied and become a lien on July 1. Collection dates
are November 15, February 15, and May 15 following the lien date. Discounts are
gliowed If the amount due is received by November 15 or February 15. Taxes
unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.
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The Slate of Oregon has a constitutional limil on property taxes for schools and non-
school general governments. The maximum aliowable combined tax rate for all non-
school general governmenls is $10 per $1,000, compression occurs, resulting in
proportionalely reduced tax collection by each taxing district. The City of Ontario
was unable fo levy $1,018 for 2008-2009 as a result of compression.

The City's permanent rate of $4.8347 per $1,000 does not change. Annual growlh
in properly lax receipts occurs lhrough allowed annual increases 1o assessed values
which cannot exceed 3% per year, unless there is new construction on existing

property.

Assessment liens receivable in the Debt Service funds are recognized at the time
property owners are assessed for property improvements. Assessment liens
receivable are offset by deferrad revenue in the fund financial statements and
accordingly, have not been recognized as revenue. Assessmenl interest receivable
is recorded when eamed; the assessment interest revenue is recognized when it
bacomes measurable and available.

Other receivables including accounts, entiiements, and shared revenues are
reported in accordance with the policies enumerated in Paragraph C above. The
City uses the direct write off method of accounting for uncollectibles and an
allowance for uncollectible accounts has not been established.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventory in the Trust Fund is determined by estimated costs, while the Public Works
inventory is determined by physical count at year end. Expenses are recognized
when inventories are consumed. Other inventories are taken for control purposes
only with no dollar value assigned.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial
statements.

4. Capital Assets

Capital Assels, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assels
(e.g. roads, pathways, elfc.) are reported in-the applicable governmantal or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statemenis. In the
governmental fund statements, capital asseis are charged fo expendilures as
purchased, and capitalized in the proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated assets are recorded al estimated fair market value as of the date of

donation.

Capital assets are defined by the City are assets with an initial, individual cost of
$5.000 or more, and have an estimated useful life of greater than one year.
Additions or improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset, or that significantly increase the capacity of an asset are
capitalized. - Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.
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Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
Statement of Activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of
Net Assets and is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives:

Asgseis Years
Building and improvements 40
Infrastructure 40
Equipment and vehicles 10

One-half year of depreciation is taken in the year individual assets are acquired or
refired. Gains or losses from sales or retirements of capital assets are included in
operalions of the current period.

5. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt obligations are reporled as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type aclivities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as wel! as issuance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the lives of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are treated as period cosls in the year of issus and
are shown as other financing uses.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance coslts, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received
on debt issuances are reporled as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or nol
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

6. Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees lo accumulate eamed but unused vacation
and sick pay benefils. No liability is reported for non-vested unpaid accumulated
sick pay benefits. All vacation pay and vested sick pay benefits is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and propristary fund financial statements, A liability
for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employees rasignations and retirements.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statemenls, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parfies for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Restricted Net Assets, Cash, and Invesiments

The City receives funds from the State of Oregon, which are legally restricted fo
sireet maintenance, repairs, and improvements, and the City has additional funds
restricted for debt service, as reguired by debt covenants. In addition, the City has
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ret assels reslricted for other items related 1o trust lype activilies, to include: motel
taxes restricted by enabling legislation, cemetery perpetual care, Tumnbull Library,
and a deposit received from Onlario Sanitary Senvices for sile clean up cosls.

The nel amount restricted for governmental activities at June 30, 2009 was
$328,274 for debt service, $196,156 for highways and streets, $2,108,303 for
system development, and $364,618 for olher trust deposits. There is also $866,759
for debt service in the businass-iype activities.

Cash and investments are restricted for the amounts above. |n addition, cash and
investmenls are restricled for deposits held for others of $236,461 in govemmental
activities and $65,840 in the business-type activities.

9, Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepied in the United Stales of America reguires management o make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reporled amounis of certain assets,
liabilifies, revenues, expendilures, expenses and other disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

E. Adoption of New GASB Pronouncement

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City implemented GASE Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions. This statement addresses how state and local governments should
account for and report their costs and obligations related to Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB). The Statement generally requires that state and local governmental
employers account for and reporl the annual cost of OPEB and the outstanding
obligations and commitments related to OPEB in essentially the same manner as they
currently do for pensions, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City's
participation in the City County Insurance Services (CCIS) health plans have been
determined to constitute a community-rated situation, as allowed by GASE 45, and
therefore there is no implicit subsidy to value and no liability accrued in the financial

statements.
Il. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Biennial budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepled In the Uniled States of America (GAAP) for the general fund, special revenue
funds, debt service fund, and capital projects fund. The biennial budgel for proprietary
funds is adopted on a basis not consistent with GAAP in order to comply with Oregon

Local Budget Law.

Oregon Local Budget Law establishes standard procedures relating lo the preparation,
adoption, and execution of the biennial budget The process under which the budget is
adopted is described in the following paragraphs.

Prior to the beginning of each budgel period, the budget prepared by City siaff is
submitted to the Budget Commitlee (consisting of the City Council and citizens of the
City). The City's budget is prepared for sach fund on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Interfund loans are budgeled as sources and uses in accordance wilh slate
budget laws, Estimaled receipts and expendilures are budgeted by fund, program and
object. Information on the past years’ actual receipts and expenditures, current-year
estimates are included in the budget document.
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The Budget Committee conducts public hearings for the purpose of obiaining citizens’
comments, and then approves a budget. The budget is submitted Lo the City Council for
final adoption. The approved expendilures for each fund may not be increased by more
than 10% by the Council without returing lo the Budget Commitlee for a second
approval. After the City Council adopts the budgel and certifizs the total of ad valorem
taxes lo be levied, no additional tax levy may be made for that fiscal year.

The City Council legally adopts the budget by resolution befare July 1. The resolution
establishes appropriations for each fund and expenditures cannot legally exceed these
appropriations. The level of conirol establishaed by the resolution for each fund is at the
object group level (i.e. personal services, materials and services, capital oullay, debt
service, interfund fransfers, and contingency). All biennial appropriations lapse al the
end of the biennium.

The City Council may change the budget throughout the budget period by transferring
appropriations between levels of contral and by adopting supplemental budgets as
authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes. Unexpected additional resources may be
added to the budget and appropriated for expenditure through the use of a
supplemental budget. The supplemental budget process requires a hearing befare the
public, publication in the newspaper, and approval of City Council. Oregon Local
Budget Law also provides certain specific exceptions to the supplemental budget
process fo increase appropriations. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted
appropriation as adopted and adjusted. Exceptions to budget law are also available for
expenditures associated with debt issued during the budget period. Management may
transfer budget amounts between individual line items within the object group, but
cannot make changes to the object groups themselves, which is the legal level of
control,

During the biennial budget period ended June 30, 2008, appropriation increases and
transfers were approved. Appropriations are limited to a biennium; therefore, all
spending authority of the City lapses as of the end of the biennium.

. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Expenditures exceed approprialions in the following funds and amounts:

Governmental Aclivities

Special Revenue Funds

Grants Fund:

Materials and services § (16.000)

Capital Projects Fund:
Materials and services & (6.640)

Business-Type Activities
Proprietary Funds

Golf Course Fund:
Personal services 4..{1.559)
Materials and services 3 (22.316)
Debt servica § (2.217)

Fublic Works Fund:
Debt service § (27,027}
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C. Deficit Fund Balances
Funds having a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Business Type Aclivities

Enterprise Funds
Golf Course Fund $(106,934)

The City has continued to suffer losses in the Golf Course Fund due lo major
improvements and upgrades in the past few years. Expenses exceeded eslimates
during the current biennium due to the City taking over operation of the Course and
implementing several changes intended to improve operations. The City continues to
consider ways o improve the operations of the Golf Course Fund and other plans to
reduce the deficit.

Ill. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. Deposits and Investments

Deposits. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has adopted accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), which includes
standards to categorize deposifs to give an indication of the level of custodial credit risk
assumed by the City at June 30, 2009. If bank deposits at year-end are not entirely
insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or by its agent in the City's
name, the Cily must disclose the custodial credit risk thal exists. The City's deposits
with financial institutions are comprised of bank demand deposits and certificates of
deposit. For deposits in excess of federal depository insurance, Oregon Revised
Statutes require that Public officials report to the Office of the State Treasurer (OST) all
bank depositories in which they deposit public funds and bank deposilories will then
report financial information and total public funds deposits quartery to OST. OST will
then calculate the required collateral that must be pledged by the bank based on this
information and the depository's FDIC assigned capitalization category. Bank
depositories will then have a shared liability in the event of a bank loss. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009, the carrying amount of the Cily's deposits, including
certificates of deposit classified as investments, was $3,561,239 and the bank balance
was $4,050,925. All deposits are held in the name of the Cily of Ontaria. Of the bank
balance, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining
$3.550,825 was collateralized under ORS 295.

Custodial credit risk for depesits is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, a
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City does not have a formal
deposit policy for custodial credif risk.

Investments. The City of Ontario has invested funds in the Stale Treasurer's Qregon
Short-Term Fund Local Gowvernment Investrment Pool during the year. The Oregon
Short-Term Fund is the local govermment investment pool for local govermments and
was established by the State Treasurer, It was created to meet the adminisirative
responsibilities of federal arbitrage regulations. The investments are regulaied by the
Oregon Shori-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment Council (ORS
284 BOS to 294 895). Local Government Investment Poaol (LGIF) is an unrated external
investment pool managed by the Stale Treasurer's Office, which aliows governments
within the stale to pool their funds for investment purposes. The amounts invesied in
the pool are nol classified by risk categories because they are not evidenced by
securifies that exist in physical or book entry as defined by GASB Statement No. 40,

In addilion, The Oregon State Treasury LGIP distributes invesiment income on an
amortized cost basis and the participant’s equity in the pool is determined by the amount
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of participant deposils, adjusted for withdrawals and distributed income. Accordingly,
the adjustment to fair value would not represent an expendable increase in the City's
cash paosition,

Credit Risk. Stale stalutes authorize the Cily to invest primarily in general obligations of
the US Government and ils agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon
municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, certain commercial
papers, and the State Treasurer’s investment pool, among others. The City has no
formal investment policy that further restricts its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City is required to provide information about the
concentration of credit risk associated with its investments in one issuer that reprasent 5
percent or more of the tolal investments, excluding investments in external investment
pools or those issued and explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Govermment. The City has
no such investments.

Interest Rate Risk. The City's investment policy limits long-term investments to 25% of
the invesiment portfolio using specific identification. The City defines long-term as
having a maturity of greater than 18 months to a maximum of 36 months. As of June
30, 2009 all of the City's investments were classified as short-term.

The City of Ontario also invested funds in U.S., Govemment Obligafions and Time
Certificates of Deposit. These investments are carried at fair valus.

Investments held by the City at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Carrying
Percentage of Amount/

Maturily Portfalio Fair Value

U.5. Government Obligations On demand DA% § 8,500
Less than one year 5.0% 509,623
13 to 18 months 2.5% 250,590
Local Government Investment Pool 1 day 87 4% 8,906,298
Time Cerdificate of Deposits Less than one year 5.0% 514 460
100% 10,189,480

Less amounts classified as cash equivalents (8,906,298)
Total Investments $ 1,283,182

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as shown on the Statement of Net Asseis
is as follows:

Cash on hand § 1,160
Deposits with financial institutions 3,046 840
Local Government Investment Pool 8,906,298
Total S 11,954 2498

. Receivables

Receivables as of fiscal year-end for the governmental aclivities individual major funds,
and nen-major funds, in the aggregate are as follows:
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Capital Other Total

Genaral Strael Projecls Governmenial Govemament al
Fund Furl Fund Funds Achviles
Frapery lazas $ 235015 § - 5 . 5 . £ 235015
BCeounts b.604 - 43,980 7.5 58,455
Intergovermimantal B4.887 1,230 7,481 188,655 263,253
Asgessmenis - - . 471,762 471,762
rotles - - - 672,075 672,075
Allowance for
doubtful agcounts - = . {139.663) {139,663}

Total recenvables $ 325,506 % 1,230 £ 51,461 £ 1,181,700 $ 1.580.887

Receivables as of fiscal year-end for the business-typa activities individual major funds
are as follows:

Gaolf Fublic Total
Course Works Business-type
Fund Furd Activites
Accounts £ 14,057 3 517,951 5 532,008
Inlergovernmenital - 1,160 1,160
Total receivables § 14,087 3 519,111 b 533,168

Uncollected property taxes in governmental funds are shown on the Statement of MNet
Assets as receivables. Property taxes are assessed and attach as an enforceable lien
on property as of July 1. Taxes are lavied on July 1 and are payable on Movember 15.

They may be paid in installiments due November 15, February 15, and May 15. Taxes
unpaid as of May 16 are considered delinquent. Taxes are billed and collected by
Malhaur County, and remittance to the City is made at penodic intervals.

For the fiscal year 2007-2008, the City levied property taxes for a general levy in the
amount of $3,016,457. After reductions for offsets and increases for additional taxes
and penallies this resulled in a net levy of $3,015,449. The tax rate for the fiscal vear
was $4.6347, per $1,000 of assessed value. The assessed valuation for the City was
$623,920,273.

Assessment liens receivable represent the uncollectad amounts levied against benefited
property for costs of local improvements. Since the assessments are liens against the
benefited property, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not necessary.
Assessments are payable over a period of ten years and bear interest at varying rates.

The City has notes receivabla from individuals and businesses for real proparty and
improvements. The notes are liens against property and an allowance for uncollectible
amounts is normally nol necessary. However, there was a loan in default at June 30,
2008 of $139,663 for which the business and owner have declared bankruptcy and no
proceeds are expecled. An allowance was established for this amount on the
government-wide statements. The notes are deferred on the fund statements and an
sllowance was not considerad necessary. The notes bear interest at varying rates of
interest with original contract terms of len to fifteen years.

Other accounts and intergovernmental receivables are considered to be fully collectible.
Accordingly, no provision for estimated uncoliectibles has been esfablished.
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C. Deferred Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues thal are not considered to be available lo liquidate liabilities of the current

period.

Governmental funds also defer revenus recognition in connection with

resources that have been received, but not yet earmed. The government-wide financial
statements report deferred revenue only for amounts that have been raceived, but nol
earned. Al the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred
revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearnead Total
Fraperty taxes receivable
General fund ¥ 203817 3 - 5 203817
Program advances
Mon-major funds 47,879 47 B7S
Assessments recaivable
MNan-major funds 472,304 - 472,304
Motes and assessments
Mon-major funds 672075 = 672075
Total deferred revenue 31,348,196 5 47879 ¥ 1,396,075
e _ —_——
D. Capital Assets
Capital agset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2009 was
as follows:
Beginning Ending
Description Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Land $ 048024 & . 5 ; 5 048,024
Construction in prograss 1,882,301 624 465 (1.889.845) 617,221
Total nan-depreciable 2,&3[!,325 24 465 {1,880 545) 1.565.245
Equipment and vehicles 6,449,445 348,795 {221,551) 6,976,689
Buildings and impravemenis 2,333,165 - - 2,333,185
Infrastructure 126,286,818 111,058 - 126,397 874
Total depreciable 135,069 426 459,853 (221,551} 135,307,728
Accumulated depreciation
Equipment and vehicles (5,777,296) (183 966) 221,561 (5,838,711)
Buildings and improvements {1,796,275) (58,329) - {1,857 604)
Infrastructure (122.664,114) (1,113,194) - (123,777, 308)
Total accumulated
depreciation (130,240 585) {1,555 480) 221,551 (131,574,623}
Tolal depreciable assets 4,828,741 (1,095 636) - 3,733,105
Govaernmental activities
capital assals, net £ 7,650 066 ] [471.171) b !‘:!589.545! & 5,296,350




Deprecialion expense for governmental activities

as lollows:

General government
Pubilic safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation

Total depracialion for governmental activities

is charged to governmental functions

3 as.807
237,037
1,108,841
120,804

$ 1.,555488

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2000 was

as follows:
Beginning Ending
De=cription Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Land § 2,451,801 § - § (9BES) § 2442747
Tolal non-depreciable 2,451 801 - {9.654) 2,442,147
Equipment and vehiclas 11,487, DEZ 78,208 {5,000} 11,568,291
Buildings and improvements 18,854 BEE - - 18,854,658
Infrastructure 37,138,855 1,889,545 = 35 028,400
Total depreciable 67,450 555 1,868 754 (8,000} B8 451,348
Accumuiated depreciation
Equipment and vehiclas (9,510,331) (1,153,659) B.a00 (10,656,000)
Buildings a&nd improvements {4,152 608) (471,368) - (4,623,5974)
Irifrastruciure (6,076,184) {851,682) - (7,027, B66)
Tatal accumulated
depreciation (18,738,123) (2,8576,717) 8,000 {22,307 ,840)
Total depreciable assels 47,751,472 (G607,863) a 47,143,509
Business-type aclivibes
capital assets, net § 50203273 § (607.963) £ (9.654) § 49,585,656
Deprecialion expense for business-type activities is charged to funciions as follows:
Golf Course & 85,323
Public Works 2,481,304
Total depreciation for business-type aclivities § 2576717

. Interfund Receivable/Payable

In the government-wide financial statemeants, lhe business-type activities had internal
loans payable to the governmental activities in the amount of $112,936. In the fund
financial statements, the General Fund had $112,936 receivable from the Golf Course
Fund and $76,829 receivable from the Grants Fund at June 30, 2009. The interfund
loans are for temporary cash management requirements.
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F. Transfers

Net transfers between govermmental activities and business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements consist of transfers into the business-type
activitias and transfers out of the governmental activities in the amount of $80,416.

A reconciliation of fransfers in the fund financial statements is as follows:

Transfers In Transiers Oul
General Fund ] 720,303 $ 708,469
Street Fund 393,934 B7.070
Mon-major governmental funds 641,473 7.500
Enterprise Funds
Golf Course Fund 108,027 -
Public Works Fund 1,033,087 1,061,698
Mon-current resources - 1,033,087
Tatal all funds § 2897824 § 2BO7 824

Transfers oul of the General Fund were for the City's contribution towards maintaining
the golf course, library and 911 operations. Additional transfers were made from the
General Fund to the Reserve Fund to fund future facility improvements and emergency
equipment purchases. The Public Works Fund transfers o the General Fund and ta the
Street Fund as overhead charge reimbursement. Capital additions were constructed in
the Reserve Fund and the Capital Projects Fund and contributed to the Public Works
Fund, net of debt issued during the year.

G. Long-Term Debt

1. Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment — Governmental
Activities

The City issued $830,650 of special assessment debt to provide funding for local
improvement districts previously funded by the City. These bonds bear inlerest
rates of 4.75%, payable first from collections of assessment liens receivable and
second, if necessary, from general property taxes. Payments are made from the
Debt Service Fund. Final payment is due September 1, 2019,

Matured,
Cutstanding Called, or Outstanding
July 1, Defeased June 30,
2008 During Year 2009 Interest
Fiscal yaar:
2009 § 65377 § 55377 § . 5 29,596
2010 55,377 - 55,377 26,962
2011 55,376 - 55,376 24,33
2012 55,376 # 53,376 21,701
2013 55,377 - 95,377 19,070
2014 55,377 - 55377 18,070
2015-2019 276,883 - 276,883 55,896
2020 27 689 - 27,689 3,946

5 636852 5 55377 § 5B1455  § 200,572
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2. Contracts and Notes Payable — Governmental Activities

The Cily has a note payable to First American Title Company for property at the
airport. The nole is payable annually wilh instaliments of $12,307, including interest
at 6%. The final paymenl is due July 18, 2010. The loan is secured by the property
purchased and is payable from general government revenues.

Matured,
Cutstanding Called, or Outstanding
July 1, Defeased June 20,
2008 During Year 2008 Interest
Fiscal year:
2009 $ 10372 § 10372 & - 3 1,046
2010 10,950 - 10,850 1,370
2011 11,834 - 11,834 733

$ 33,186 $§ 10,372 $ 22784 § 4,049

3. Capital Leases — Governmental Activities

The City has enterad into various capital lsase agreements as lessee for financing of
a pumper truck during the current year and police vehicles in the prior year. The
leases qualify as capilal leases and therefore the vehicles have been recorded at the
present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date of inception.

Assets leased under capital leases at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Balance Interest

of Lease Rate
Pierce KW Pumper 3 126,782 4.99%
2 Dodge Chargers 8,461 8.40%
Chevy Tahoe 14,854 8.95%
Total capital leases $151,197

A schedule of future minimum lesse paymenis is az follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Total
2010 3 55,842
2011 29,275
2012 29,275
2013 29,275
2014 29,275
Total minimum lease payments 173,042
Less: interest included in payments (21,845)
Present value of minimum lease payment £151,197
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4. Certificates of Participation (COP's) — Business-Type Activities — Golf Course

5}

Fund

The City has financed golf course improvemenls with Certificates of Participalion
(COP's), which are recorded in the Golf Course Fund, an Enterprise Fund. Inlerest
rates range from 3.9% to 5.15%. Instaliments are payable first from user fees and
second, if necassary, from general property taxss,

Principal
Matured,
Cutstanding Called, or Dutstanding
July 1, Defeased Juna 30,
2008 During Year 2009 Interest
Fiscal year:
2009 $ 82,045 ¥ B2,045 5 - $ 18127
2010 88,137 £ 88,137 14,067
2011 94 283 - 94 283 9,638
2012 85,485 - 05,485 4,856
£ 359,950 § 82ﬂ45 § 277,905 + 46,698

Contracts, Loans and Notes Payable — Business-Type Activities — Golf Course
Fund

The Golf Course Fund borrowed $11,106 through the Economic Development
Department within the City's General Fund, payable in monthly installments of
$208,58, including interest at 5%, with final payment due June 15, 2010

Matured,
Outstanding  Called, or Dutstanding
July 1, Deleased June 30,
2008 During Year 2009 Interest
Fiscal year:
2009 $ 2327 § 23377 0§ - § 188
2010 2,462 - 2,462 69

$ 4780 § 2327 § 2462 § 257

Contracts and Notes Payable - Business-Type Activities — Public Works Fund

The City has notes payable to the state of Oregon Department of Environmental
Quality for utility systems improvements. Interest rates range from 3.0% (o 3.98%
over a term of 20 years. Semi-annual payments of principal and interast are
required and recorded in the Public Works Fund, an Enterprise Fund.



Fiscal year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

2015-2018
2020

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015-2019
2020

Loan 70810 - 3% Loan 70811 - 3.98%
Principal Intarast Prncipal Interasl
§ 502942 % 78,213 5 88,565 L2 38,461
502,842 54,125 92 125 32,901
502,942 48,037 95 B24 29,198
502,842 33,9449 99 680 25,346
502,942 18,860 103, 687 21,339
251,469 3772 458 138 41,970
§ 2766178 § 248,956 _§ B3s024 § 187215
Loan 706812 - 3.69% Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest
§ 138168 3% 62.813 § T20678 § 178B.487
143,316 07,666 738 383 154,602
148,653 52 329 TAT 424 130,564
154,188 46,784 756,810 108,089
155,830 41,062 TOE, 058 81,251
893,550 111,360 1,603,157 157,102
48,647 1.820 98 647 1.820
$ 1,7365453 § 373834 $ 5440656 ¥ 810,005

The City converted water treatment facility improvements interim-financing from the
Cregon Economic and Community Development Department lo a promissory note in
the amount of $4,482,580 on May 1, 2007. Principal and interest, at rates from
4.0% to 4.375%, is payable annually. The final paymenl is due December 1, 2031.
The City has pledged its full faith and credit and the net operating revenues of the
water system to repay the note.

Fiscal year:

2009
2010
2011
22
2013
2014
2015-2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2080-2032

Matured,
Outstanding Called, or Qutstanding
July 1, Defeased June 30,
2008 During Year 2009 Interest
113,043 $ 113843 % - 3 185678
114,700 = 114,700 1811241
120,489 - 120,485 176,533
126,308 e 126,308 171,713
132,160 - 132,160 166,661
138,047 - 138,047 161,374
754,821 - 754 B21 721,284
933,536 - 933,536 553,584
1,155,717 - 1,185,717 334,245
514,197 - 814,197 72201
5 4403918 $ 1139843 F 4283975 G 2,724,494
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The City received an additional $856,456 in funds from their approved inferim-
financing nole payable to the Oregon Economic and Community Development
Depariment for improvements lo the wastewater Ireatment facilities. The note
accrued interest at 3.52% per annum, which was paid prior 1o converling the interim
financing agreement to permanent financing. All outstanding principal on the interim
agreement was converted to parmanent financing on May 27, 2009,

Matured,
Outstanding Called, or Outstanding
July 1, IssLed Defeased June 30,
2008 During Year During Year 2004 Interasi
Fiscal year:
2009 3,205,144 A56 456 4,081,600 - 208,306
£ 3.2055144 i 856,456 £ 4061800 & - $ 208,305

The City converted their interim-financing note payable to the Oregon Economic and
Community Development Department for improvements lo the water treatment
facilities into a promissory note in the amount of $3,976,600 on May 27, 2009.
Principal and interest, at rates from 3.0% lo 5.25%, is payable annually. The final
payment is due December 1, 2033. The City has pledged its full faith and credit and
the net operating revenues of the water system fo repay the note.

Matured,
Outstanding Called, or Ciulstanding
Jduly 1, |ssumd Defeasad June 30,
2008 During Year During Year 2009 Interest
Fizcal yaar:
2000 § - § - b3 - b3 - £ -
2010 - O 546 : - 06,546 103,802
2011 - 87,043 - 7,043 174,298
2012 - 102,554 - 102,554 171,386
2013 - 103,081 - 103,081 168,310
2014 . 108,714 8 108,714 164,702
20152018 - 604,905 - 504,805 758,420
2020-2024 - 744,235 - 744,235 618,016
2025-2029 - 932 976 - 932,976 423,887
2030-2034 - 1,186,546 - 1,186,546 174,268
§ - § 3976,600 3 - § 3,976,600 § 2757 189

7. Water Revenue Bonds — Business—Type Activities — Public Works Fund

The City issued Waler Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, on December 13, 2002 in the
amount of $856 799, with interest at 4.5%. Interest is payable semiannually on the
15" day of December and June of each year. Principal payments of $36.680 are
payable annually on December 15 Final payment is due December 15, 2012, The
bonds are not subject to redemption at the option of the City.
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Matured,

Qutstanding Called, or Outstanding
July 1, Defeased June 30,
2008 During Year 2008 Interest
Fiscal year:
2009 $§ 86676 § 86676 & - $ 17,840
2010 88,681 - 86,681 13,652
201 86,681 - 86 681 9,752
2012 86,682 - 86,682 5,851
2013 86,694 - 86,694 1,950
§ 433414 § BEETH ¥ 346,738 3 48,845

B. Changes in Long—Term Liabilities

Changes for the year ended June 30, 2009 were as follows:

Gaovernmeantal Activities:
Mot payatle
Special assessments
Capital leases
Compensaled absences

Tatal governmental activitizs

Business-type Activities:
Certificates of parlisipation
Compensaled absences
Contracts and notes

payahle:
DECDD interim Tinancing
Oregon DED contracts
DECDD Water Traalmwenl
QECDD Wastewater Traaimeni
Premum on QECDD WWTP
Goll Course Econamic
Development note
Water Revanue Bonds

Total business-type aclivilies

I'V. Other Information

A. Risk Management

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reduclions Halanze one year
5 331686 5 - 3 10,372 ] Z2Te4 0§ 10,850
636,832 - 55,377 581,455 B5, 377
46, TET 228,782 122,352 191197 47,364
347,033 351428 347,003 381,422 351,422
1,063 TEA 578,204 535,134 1,108,858 465,113
359.950 - B2.045 2778035 88,137
118,120 127,148 118,120 127,148 127,148
3,205,144 BSE, 456 4,061,600 - -
6,161,050 - 721294 5,440,656 13676
4,403,918 - 113,542 4,289 976 114,700
- 3.8976.600 - 3,976,600 96,548
- 85,000 288 B4,711 -
4,789 - 2327 2462 2462
433,414 - ES.ETE 248,738 B6.681
14,687,285 5,045,204 5,185,293 14,548,198 1,245,350
$ 15751073 % 5623408 8 5721427 & 15653054 § 1.710463

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to and
destruciion of assets: errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City
carries commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage
from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage for the past three

years,
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B. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Public Employees Retirement System

1.

Plan Description

The City of Ontario contributes 1o the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund
(OPERF), a cosl-sharing mulliple-employer, Defined Benefit Pension Plan,
administrated by the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).
PERS provides retiremenl and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Oregon Revised Statute 238
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the PERS Board
of Trustees.

In the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created a
successor plan for PERS. The Oregon Public Service Relirement Plan (“OPSRP") is
effective for all new employees hired on or after August 29, 2003, and applies to any
inactive PERS members who retumn to employment following a six-month or greater
break in service. The new plan consists of a defined benefit program (the “Pension
Program’) and a defined contribution porfion (the Individual Account Program or
“IAP"). The Pension Program portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by
employer confributions. Benefits are calculated by a formula for members who
aftain normal retirement age. The formula takes into account final average salary
and years of service and a faclor that varies based on the type of service (general
versus police or fire).

Beginning January 1, 2004, all PERS member contributions go inlo the |AP portion
of OPSRP. PERS members retain their existing PERS accounts, but any future
member contributions are deposiled into the member's LAP, not the member's PERS
account. Those employees who had established a PERS membership prior to
creation of OPSRP will be members of both the PERS and OPSRP system as long
as they remain in covered employment.

Both PERS and OPSRP are adminislered by the Oregon Public Employzes
Retirement Board ("OPERB”). The comprehensive annual financial report of the
funds administered by OPERB may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public
Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 87281-3700, or by
calling 1-888-320-7377, or by accessing the PERS web site at www.pers.stale.or.us.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary. The
City is required by ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the
current rate is 15.86% of annual covered payroll for Tier | and Tier |l employees.
Public employees hired after August 29, 2003, after a six month wailing period,
become members of the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan {OPSRF). The
rate for OPSRP is sel at 16.37% of covered payroll for general services employses
and 12.64% for police and fire employees, The contribution requirement of plan
members and their employers are established under ORS Chapter 238, and may be
amended by the PERS Board of Trusiees. The City's contributions to PERS for the
years ending June 30, 2008, 2008 and 2007 were $873,221, $847,075, and
$834,445, respectively, equal fo the required contributions each year.



The pension liability (assel) was delermined in accordance with Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27. Since all acluarially determined

contribulions have been paid, the pension liability (assel) is zero.

C. Commitments and Contingencies

1.

Construction in Progress

The City is committed under engineering contracts at June 30, 2009 to complete the
design of Reimbursement District #3. The folal budget for this project is $167,500,
of which $147 676 has previously been paid. Approximately 88% of the project was
complete at June 30, 2009,

The City is under engineering contracts at June 30, 2008 to complete the design of
the Washington Avenue/North Oregon realignment project. The total budget for this
project is $548,500, of which $435,877 has previously been spent. Approximately
79% of the project was complete at June 30, 2009.

in June 2009, the City accepted a counter offer to purchase real property in the
amount of $750,000. The property is slated o become the nne-siop shop for the
Public Works Departmeant. A $10,000 down payment was made on the purchase,
with an anticipated closing of August 24, 2009,

Intergovernmental

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and
adjustments by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any
disallowed claims, including amounis already collecled, may constitute a liability of
the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the granlor cannol be determined at this time although the City expecls such
amounts, if any, 1o be immaterial,

Subsequent Events

In June 2009, the City approved amendment #1 to the agreement with Anderson
Perry, Inc. for construction administration and construction engineering for the
design of the reconstruction of North Oregon Street from Idaho Avenue to NW 1
Street in the amount of $230,000. HNo expendilures ware made on this contract at
June 30, 2009,

In June 2009, the City accepted a counter offer to purchase real property in the
amount of $750,000. The property is slated to become the one-stop shop for the
Public Works Department. A $10,000 down payment was made on the purchase,
with an anticipated closing of August 24, 2009

In August 2009, the City awarded a construction contract lo Adamson Pump and
Drilling in the amount of $105,172 for the drilling and equipping with submersible

pumps of two wells,
In Decamber 2009, the City approved selling approximately 66 acres of City owned

real property for an estimated selling price of $1,333,000. Closing of the transaction
is expected during calendar year 2010,
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Also in December 2009, the Gity authorized the purchase of a 2010 Combination Jet
Rodder/Sewer Cleaner Truck from Enviro-Clean Equipment in the net amount of
$298 952

In February 2010, the City was awarded a grant from the Oregon Department of
Energy in the amount of $728,000. The grant will be used to replace the heating
and cooling system at City Hall, as well as the entire lighting system. In November
2010, the City awarded the bid for the City Hall HVAC and lighting upgrade for
$546,600.

In April 2010, the City authorized contracts for kitchen appliances and equipment
and construction for the golf course kitchen remodel of approximately $99,000.

In June 2010, the City awarded & design build agreement for the construction of a
five bay fire station storage building for $485,300. The Rural Fire Board has
pledged $105,000 lowards the project.

In June 2010, the City Council authorized the City Manager to sign a new three year
labor agreement with the Ontario Police Association, which includes wage increases
refroactive to July 1, 2009 and a one time signing bonus.

In July 2010, the city approved a local agency agreement with the State of Oregon fo
provide $4.5 million in funding for the Northwest Washinglon Avenue Realignment
Project. In addition, the City will use $375,200 in funds currently on hand and lake
responsibility for maintenance of the improvements.

In August 2010, the City approved a Fund Exchange agresment with the State of
Oregon for $110,185 for improvements to various City Streets.

In October 2010, the Cily accepted additional Connect Oregon Il grant funds for the
Airport Pavement Improvement Project and approved an ggreament for addifional
engineering costs related fo the project.

in November 2010, the Cily awarded the bid for the Water Treatment Plant Upgrade
Project for $36.649 and awarded the bid for the Aguatic Center Renovation and
Design Phase 2 in an amount not to excead $72,834.

Also in November 2010, the City approved Cooperative Agreement #26638 with
ODOT for signal upgrades and street improvements. Total project costs are
estimated at $2 million with the City's portion estimated at $800,000.

D. Post Retirement Benefits

In addition lo providing pension benefits, the City provides cerain benefits for retired
City employees. The City allows a City service credit for refired supervisors having 15
years or more employment with the City. This credit is a maximum of $300 per year
until the retiree’s death. The credit may be used only for City services to include; use of
the City's Aqualic Center, health insurance, and city utilities. No carryforward from year
to year is allowed.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, there were 16 active parlicipants, The total cost of
$4,800 in retiree benefits are current year expenditures and were charged o the fund
for which the participant was employed: $2,820 for the General Fund, $480 for the 911
Fund, and $1,500 for the Public Works Fund.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION







COMBINING STATEMENTS

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenus Funds account for revenue from specific sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Funds included in this category are:

Library Fund - This fund accounts for revenues received form library relaled programs,
fransfer of interest from the Turnbull Library Fund, and expenditures for the operation of
the library.

911 Fund - This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of emergency
communications and dispatch operations. State telephone tax is the main source of
revenue.

Trust Fund - This fund accounts for resources received and held by the City for specific
purposes. Disbursements are restrictad to support the library, Visitor and Convention
Bureau, Chamber of Gommerce, and the cemetery

Revolving Loan Fund - This fund accounts for loans made and payment received from
revolving loan funds available to local businesses and citizens.

Reserve Fund - This fund accounts for the setting aside of monies for future needs of the
City fo include opergtions, capital acquisition, construction, and maintanance.

Grants Fund - The Grants Fund accounts for revenue and expendilures funded wholly, or
partially, by other government agencies.

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund - used to account for revenuas and expenditures related to the City's
long-lerm indebtedness, including Local Improvement District debl,






CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2009

Special Dabt
Revenua Sarvice Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 8 2110384 5§ 331859 0§ 2442743
Investments 522,969 = 522,969
Fecaivablas:
Accounts 7.812 =0 7.871
Intergovernmental 168,655 = 168,653
Aszzessments s 471,762 471,762
MNotes 672,075 = 672075
Inventory 4,324 . 4,324
Total assets $ 3487719 % Q_IEIE.EBQ § 4291399
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
accrued kabilities 5 apses &% . g a0,585
Matured interest outstanding : 3,102 3,102
Interfund payabis 76,829 E 76,828
Deposits 236,461 % 236,461
Defarrad revanue 719,054 472,304 1,192,258
Total habihities 1,123,838 475,406 1.5849 245
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Dbl service - 328 274 328,274
Unreserved, reportad in:
Special revenua funds _2.363.880 - 2,363,880
Total fund balances 2,363,880 328,274 2,682,154
Tolal liabilites and
fund balancas $ 3487.718 ! 803,680 s 41291 399

See auditor's repor,
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SUB-COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2009
Rievolving
Library 211 Trus Loan
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalants § 24002 % 53006 % 4147 § 157.551
Investments . r 522969 ¢
Recaivables:
Accounts 13 . 276 5,445
Intergovemmental 1,162 j ; :
Mot e - . 672,075
Inventary - : 4,324 £
Total assets 3 26007 % 530068 3§ 601,716 § 835 071
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities g 25451 § 87T % B37T § 284
Interfund payable . . : :
Ceposits - . 236 461 :
Deferad revenus = i ! G72,075
Tolal liabilities 25451 B77 23T.008 672 350
FUND BALANCES
Urnreserved, reported in:
Spacial ravenue funds G625 52,129 364,618 162,712
Tzl lisbiities and
fund balances 5 26077 & 53006 % 601716 % B835,0M1

Sea audior's report.
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Fesane Geanis
Fund Fund Totals

5 1.Botzve § < F 210,884
: 522,969

2,078 7812
168,492 168,855
. 672,075

4,324

$ 1.80127B 3 170,571 5 3.487.719

£ 36,485 3 26,831 5 80,595
. 76,529 76829

: 236 461

47,870 718,854

16,495 151,589 __ 1,123.839
1,764,783 18,012 2,363,880

§ 1801378 3§ 170,671 $  3.487,718

Sea audior's repor.






CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

COMBIMING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEMDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

REVENUES
DMhear taxes

Intergevernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
Interest on investimants
Loan repayments
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Ganeral governmant
Fublic safety
Cullure and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND EALANCE, Ending

See auditor's repor,

Special Debl
Revenue Service Tolals
5 243779 & % 243,779
240,832 240,832
7,263 7,263
9 TE9 3,769
= 63,443 63,443
52 225 26.811 79,036
68,058 7 BE,058
2,607 2,807
624,833 g0 254 715,087
47 156 47,156
480,524 480,524
435,485 435 435
327 666 F 327 666
A 87,577 87 577
1,290,831 87.577 1,378,408
(665,998) 2677 (663,321)
541,473 641,473
{7,500] (7.500)
633,873 633,973
(32,025) 2677 (29,348)
2,395 005 325,597 2,721,502
5 2363880 3§ 328274 S 2632154



LT UFE UNTARKIU, URKEGUN

SUB-COMEINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAMCE

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

REVENUES
Other tazes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfaitures
Irterest on investments
Loan repayments
Miscallaneous

TOTAL REVEMUES

EXPENDITURES
Curmrent;
Genearal govemment
Public safety
Culture and recraation
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FIMANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers pul

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALAMNCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

See auditor's repon

Feervoilving
Licrary 21 Trusl Loan
Furd Fund Fund Fusne
3 . g ; b 243779 %
8,500 B2,079 k
. 3,080 4,183
9.769 . . :
: 18,898 33,327
: g . 8,058
1,246 1,536 .
19,515 55,695 L66,850 101,385
; 382
3 480,524 = 2
185873 ' 238612
195 873 480 524 239,612 382
[176.358) (393.823) 27 248 101,003
33,563 366,940 3
4 : (7,500}
33,6563 366, 940 [7.,500) -
(142,785) (26,580 19,748 101,003
143,421 78,018 344 BTO 61,709
3 626 % 52120 % 364518 & 162,712

J8A



Resarve Granle
Furd Fund Tolals
3 - S . b 2437749
4,395 145,858 240,832
. A 7263
8. 7ce
82,225
+ 68,058
1258 2907
4 520 145,858 G24 833
30,774 16,000 47,155
- J 480,524
; * 435 485
168,380 158,286 327 666
200,154 174,286 1,280,831
(195,634) (28 .478) 685,298)
240,970 41,473
- i7.500)
240,970 (33973
45 336 (28,428) {32,025
1,710,447 47 440 2,395,905
¥ 1764783 & 19.012 % 2,363,580

Sea audibors report.






BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

Pursuant fo the provisions of Oregon Revised Statute 297.465, Oregon Administralive Rule
#162-010-0130, Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, requires an
individual schedule of revenues, expenditures/expenses, and changes in fund balances/net
assets, budget and actual be displayed for each fund where legally adopted budgets are

requirsd.

In accordance with GASB Statement #34, the City's General Fund and Streets Fund are
presentad in the Basic Financial Statement seclion. All other budgetary comparisons are
displayed in the following pages as supplemental information.






SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds
= Library Fund

911 Fund

Trust Fund

Revolving Loan Fund

Reserve Fund

Grants Fund

Debt Service Fund
= Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Fund
= (Capital Projects Fund



CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVENUES
Imergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellansous

TOTAL REVEMUES

EXPENDITURES
Crareni:

Culturs and recreation:
Personal services
Materials and services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [US ES)
Transfers m

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

Ses audiler's repor.

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

LIBRARY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2007-2009 YVarianze with
Eudgetad Amounts 15t Year 2Znd Year Combined  Final Budget -
Actual Actual Actual Positive /
Criginal Final Amounts Amounts Amounts (Hegative)
1 i B500 § 8500 3 BA00 B 17000 3§ 8,500
17.000 17.000 8,776 8,764 18,545 1,545
3,300 5,500 417 1246 1,663 (3.B3T)
22,500 31,000 17,683 15615 37,208 §,208
252,204 266,538 108,384 117,274 226 658 40,150
137,439 141459 44885 78500 _ 173s04 17 BES
308707 408 287 154378 25873 350, >82 58,045
1377 297 377 297) {136 606) {176,358) (312,044} 4,253
377,297 arr.2o7 188 652 33,563 222215 {185.082)
3TT 257 377 287 180 652 33,563 222215 [155,082)
51,966 (142.795) {90,829) (90.828)
" 91,455 143,421 91,455 51,455
§ 5 3 14342 & 526 5 626 § 626




CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCGE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

9-1-1 FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2007-2000 Varianee with
Budgeted Amounts 151 Year 2nd Year Combined  Final Budget -
Actual Actual Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts Amounts Bmounts (Hegative)
REVENUES
Intargovemmental % 142552 % 142552 5 33z % 8207 § 175981 % 33439
Charges for services £,000 &,000 3170 3,080 6,280 250
Miscallaneaus . - 1,534 1,536 2,070 3,070
TOTAL REVENUES 148,552 145,552 98,616 06,645 185,311 35,739
EXFENDITURES
Currenl:
Public salety:
Personal services 860279 860,279 402 948 441 658 Ba4 606 15,673
Materials and services 74142 74,142 25,118 38,866 63,881 10,161
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 034 421 B34 471 428,063 480,534 a08 587 25,834
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (785 BE) (785,880} {320,447] {343 B20) {T23.278) 83503
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 7HS 868 785,858 392,540 366,240 7549 B8O (25 988)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 7B5 869 TES,BRS 392,840 366,540 FEO.280 _ (35988
HET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE . - 63,483 (26,880) 35 804 35 80
FUMD BALAMCE {DEFICIT), Beginning . - 15 525 79,016 15.525 15,525
FUND BALAMCE {DEFICIT), Ending 5 - 5§ < B 79018 % S22 § 52129 § 62,128

See audilor's report.



CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

TRUST FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

200T-200% Variance with
Budgwled Amounts 15t Yaar ind Year Combined  Final Budgat -
Actual Actual Actual PasHiva
Original Final Amounts Amounts Ameounte (Magative)
REVENHUES
Ciibwer taves § 455000 5 S1M00F 3 JBOS3E 3 243779 3 50437 % (6 BRS)
Charges for services 20,200 20,200 15,300 4,183 19,4583 [717)
Interest on investments 29,000 25,000 18,301 18,808 iv.199 8193
Miscellaneous . - 6.67F - B.672 6,672
TOTAL REVEMUES 504,200 860,202 300,811 256,860 587671 T.469
EXPENDITURES
Curmrent:
Culture and racreation:

Materials and services 738,439 794,441 275,918 238,612 515 530 278,911
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 738438 704 441 275,918 238,612 515,530 278,911
REVENUES OVER [UNDER)

EXPENDNTURES (234 239 (234,233} 24,853 27,248 52 141 286,350
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES [USES)
Transfers ou {15,000) (15,000 {7.500) {7,500) {15,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
S0URCES (USES) 15.0 {15,000) {7 5000 {7,500) {15.000)
MET CHANGE IN FUND EALAMNCE {242 233) {249.239) 17,243 19,748 37101 286,380
FUND BALANCE, Beginning 533,651 533651 327 477 344 870 327 477 {206,174)
FUND BALANCE, Ending $ 204412 T IB441Z 5 344ETO § 4618 5 2ed6i8 S 40,206
E——————— N —— —

S auditor's report.
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVEHUES
Intarest on investments
Loan repaymenis

TOTAL REVEHNUES
EXPEHDITURES
Cument
General govemment:
Materials and services
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
HET CHANGE N FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

Ses auditor s repar

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVOLVING LOAN FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2007-2009 Variance with
Budgeted Amaunts 18t Year 2nd Year Combined  Final Budget -
Actual Actual A lual Pasitive
Criginal Final Amounts Amounits Ameunts (Megative)

§ 16875 % 16678 § 40,696 % 233,327 5 74023 0§ 57,148
48 763 44,283 73,452 8,058 141,540 93.277
65,138 65,138 114,178 101,385 215,583 150,425

231,947 331,04 308112 382 308 454 22453
331,247 331.947 309,112 383 apa.484 22,453
(266.809) {255,809) [194,934) 101,002 (83,931} 172878
266,809 266,808 256,643 61,708 256,643 (10, 166)
1,700 § WHETEZ 3 162712 §  1E2Ti2

5 - & v B
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVEMUES
Intergovermmenta
Interest on invastiments
Miscelaneoms

TOTAL REVEMUES

EXPENDITURES
Currant;
Ganeral govemment:
Materials and services
Capital ouliay
Cantingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER [UNDER)
EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (UISES)

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANGE, Ending

Sae auditor's repor,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

RESERVE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

20072009 Vartance with
Budgated Amounts 1s1 Year 2nd Year Combined  Final Budgat -
Actual Actual Actual Positive /
Original Firal Amounts Amounts Amounts [Negative)
F 103525 § 10325 § 40954 § 4395 § 9349 3§ (a78)
1,800 1,800 - % > {1.800)
10,000 10,000 15.000 126 15,125 5128
22,125 22,125 19,954 4,520 24,474 2,349
62400 B2,400 23224 30774 52993 8,402
1.625.088 1,686,727 459,811 169,380 539,191 1,027,536
741.709 741,704 5 - . 741,709
2425197 2470836 492 135 J00,154 582 188 1 7?§ B4T
(£207.072) _ {2448.711) (472,081} {195 534) (B57.715) 1,780,596
1,153,880 1,289,258 678.087 240970 #18,057 (380,201 )
{440,563) 440.563) (419,800) (419,800 20,763
713317 858,685 258 287 240,970 490 257 {359 438)
(1.683,755)  {1,580.016) {213,784) 45,335 (168, 458) 1,421,558
3,204,158 3,204,188 1,933 241 1,718,447 1,833,241 (1,270,947)

£ 1510433 51814172 5 1719447 3 1L.764,7B3 3§ 1784783 § 150,51
b a——
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GRANTS FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2007-200% Varlanze with
Budgeted Amounts 15l Year Znd Year Combined  Final Budget -
Actual Actual Actual Positive |
Oiriginal Final Amounts Amounts Amounts (Megativa)
REVEMWUES
Intargovemmental £ 144000 § 1555853 % 1002627 5 145856 5 1245485 § (407.368)
TOTAL REVENUES 144,000 1,655,853 1,102 627 145 858 1,248,455 (407,368)
EXPENDITURES
Curment:
Ganaral govermnment:
Materials and services - 15,000 16,000 {18,000)
Capilal outlay 233,582 1,874,197 1,186 805 158 284 1,345,091 529,106
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ____PAzsgo 1874187 1186805 174,266 1361091 S13108
REVENUES OVER [UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (B8 SHZ) (218,344) [84,178) (@ 228) {112,606} 105,738
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 20,000 148,752 126,752 128,752 20,000]
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
S0OURCES (USES) 20,000 148,752 1208752 128,752 {20,000}
HET CHAMGE IN FUND BALANCE (69.592) {69,552) 44 574 {28 428) 16,1456 BE T3
FUND BALANCE, Beginning 69,552 9,592 2866 4T 440 2 BEE (B6.7.25]
FUND BALANCE, Ending 5 3 47440 % 18012 § 18012 3 18,012

See auditars report.
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVEMUES
Special assessments
Ird=rest on invesiments

TOTAL REVEMUES

EXPEMDITURES
Debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

See auditor's repor,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

20072009 Variance with
Budgeted Amounts 15t Year Znd Taar Combined  Final Budgat -
HAetual Astual Aiual Positive
Original Final Amounts Amounts Amounts (Magative)
5 W0EM0 § 108010 § 118111 5 63443 F 182554 § T4.544
71,700 1,700 32,856 26,6811 50 669 {12,081
178,710 179,710 151,958 90,254 242,223 62,513
—A3ee | 441328 B7.539 BT57T 175,176 B.152
dd1, 328 41328 87504 87577 178176 266,152
(261,618) 618 64,370 2877 B7.04T 328 655
[261.618) (Z61.618) 64,370 2,677 B7.047 328,665
261,618 261,618 261227 329,597 261,227 (391}
$ - & § 325587 § 328274 § 28274 § 3283274
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CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVENUES
Assessments
Charges for sarvices
Intargowammental
System development changes

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General sendces:
Materials and sarvices

Capital outlay
Comtingency
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXFENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

lssuance of debt
Transfers in

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

HET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

See awdilor's reporl

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2607-2009 Wariance with
Budgeted Amounts 18l Year Ind Yoar Combined  Final Budget -
Actual Actual Astual Fositive !
Original Final Amounts Amounts Amounts {Hogalive)
5 933000 § 93000 5 59115 § 12202 3§ 71,317 § (B61,683)
14,000 14,000 31133 6024 37,157 23,157
. - - 149 627 145,627 149,627
1,076,500 1,076,500 431,153 467 523 948 676G (127 824)
203,500 2023500 574,401 £35,376 1,206,777 [B16,723)
- . ’ 6,640 6,540 {B.8400
7,455,633 7,945,633 3,264,553 B9E 065 1 062,548 3582845
428,245 420,246 s o - 438,246
7.BB4 B7D 7,874,872 3,264,653 704,735 3.060,288 4,005,581
[5.B51.379) _ (5951379 (2,693 162} {f8.258) 2,762,511} 3,188,866
£ P58 060 5,256,960 791,308 856 455 1,647,765 (3,609,195)
285.953 375,953 90,000 : 90,000 (285,953)
5542013 5632913 B81.309 856,456 1,737,768 (3 B95148)
(318, 466) {318,466) {1.B11,843) TER7 047 {1,024, 74E) [T0&, Z80)
318 466 318 488 3858073 2,047 130 3,356,973 3,540,507
b & § 2047130 § 2,834,237 § 2834227 3 2834297
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds
= Golf Course Fund
= Public Works Fund



CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GOLF COURSE FUND

REVENUES
Changes for senices

Intergovemmental
TOTAL REVEMUES

EXPENDITURES
Cosh of services.
Personal services
Materals and services
Capital auflay
Dbl service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UMDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), Beginning

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), Ending

RECONCILIATION TO GENERALLY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Capital sssele, nel of depraciation

Accrued expenses
Long-term obfigations

MNET ASSETS, Ending

See audilor's report

45

2007-2009 Variance with
Budgatad Amounts 18t Year Ind Year Combined Final Budgal -
Actual Actual Actual Positive |
Original Final Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negativa)
$ iBa546 $ 200171 0§ G791 § 168914 5 236820 0§ (24.342)
16,100 16,100 - 16,100
1B4.546 277271 B4 015 168,914 262 929 [24,342)
3 4,625 L 65,164 GE, 184 {1,559)
188,028 201,020 83,543 129,802 723,345 (22.316)
17.071 105, 32,409 65,562 97,0401 7,780
___ 205784 205,204 106 512 100 840 207,511 (2217}
411,394 576,718 232,454 382 587 585 031 (16317
___ (226 A4E) (230, 448) 148,44 {193,653 {342,102} [42.654)
226,848 290 445 185 715 108,027 284,742 [4.706)
226,848 285,448 185,715 109,027 204,742 14,706}
37266 (B4 62G) {47,360} [47,360)
{99,574} (£2,308) {59,574) 159,574)
] & § (22308) § (106.934) (106,934) & (106934)
79,261
{4.824)
{280,365}
§ G5BT 137



CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

PUBLIC WORKS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

2007-20:09 Varlanca with
Budgetad Amaounts 15t Yoar 2nd Year Combined  Final Budget -
Actual BActual Actual Positiva [
Criginal Final Amolnts Amounts Amounts (Megative)
REVENLUES
Charges for services 572,234,140 $12234,140 5 5780976 § 5763624 511544800 5 (663,540}
interest on invesiments 400,000 400,000 0448 175,828 485,277 BE2TT
Miscellanesus 82.200 B2.200 30,264 80,428 118,682 37,492
TOTAL REVENUES 12,716,340 12,716,340 6,121,588 6.028.881 12,150,068 {SE5,771)
EXPENDITURES
Cost of services:
Personal services 3382148 3,347,398 1.583,693 1,669,750 3283443 93,955
Materials and services 3020676 3025626 1,252,993 1320222 2582215 443411
Capital outlay 51,800 51,900 5,500 36841 42,141 0,753
Diebt sepvice Z.617,390 2,788,390 1,265,558 1.548.418 2815417 (27.027)
Contingency 2055 B2 2544883 - . o 2544 SB3
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 110886878 11 7 4,118,164 4,575,032 FEG3.216 3054881
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 717,964 B5E 443 20003, 504 1,453 840 3457 353 2428210
OTHER FIMANCING SOURCES [USES)
Sale of propery . - 106,055 106 055 106,035
Transfers oul (3,331,182 (3,672 261) (1,784.678) {1,061,598) (2 856,576 715,685
TOTAL OTHER FIMANCING
SOURCES (USES) {3.331,182) 72281 {1,704, 6TE) {955 5431 (2,760,321) 821,840
HET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGE (2613818 (2,613,818} 208,826 498 206 FOT.032 3,320,830
FUND BALANCE, Beginning 2513818 2813.818 4 109,065 4317 891 4,108,085 1,485,247
FUND BALANCE, Ending H - -3 « 3 437891 5 4816097 4,816,087 3§ 4316097
_—— e ——————————— e
RECONCILIATION T GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIFLES
Capital assels, net of deprecialion 45 606,395
Imveniony 68 273
Accrued expanses (32177
Dbt premium (24, 711)
Long-lerm obligations (14,053, 872)
NET ASSETS, Ending § 35,339.305
= ——

See audilar’s report
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OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES




CITY OF ONTARIO, OREGON
PUBLIC WORKS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - COST OF SERVICES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (HOM-GAAFR BUDGETARY BASIS)
For the fiscal yaar anded June 30, 2009

Parsana! Services Minienial and Services
Vananca wilh
FHIT-2H8 Budgaled Amounis 15l Year 2nd Year Combirmed Final Budped- _ 2007-2008 Budgeled Amounts
Actual Actual Acual Positve
Criginal Final AMmounts Amounts Amournils [Hegalive) Oiraginal Firul
EXPENDITURES
Public Works:
Administrative 5 05330 5§ 954584 5 D774 0§ 505044 5 WI3MIE 5 40EE6E § 3d5TA? 0§ 350,53T
Watar B9 83 G823 28B,2TE 330,578 B2E.458 42T 1,113,681 1113661
Sawer & 10 536,510 254,016 268,703 523,719 2831 714,959 714,958
m dra'ln SELERD 56,650 13,364 25,11 MO7T5 17575 52,159 52,198
Facility mainlanance 140,051 140,051 68,483 73,741 142024 (2173} 55381 56.281
Lty mainlananes 1,040,220 1,040,230 551578 454.073 1008 551 34,560 737,929 73623
Total Public Works 3,352,148 § A34T.E06 51503683 5 165ITH0 § 3251443 5953855 § AOPOETE  § 307562
See auditor's repart
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Malarial and Geraitas

Total Cast of Services

W anance weih Waranoa wiin
1sl Year 2 Yoar Combinad  Final Budgel-  2007-2008 Budgeled Amounts 151 Yoor Znd Yaar Commned  Final Budpel:
Actual Actasal Aciual Pasitive Actual Actual Aetual Puoskios
Arnaairds Artaunts Amounis {Magalive) irigiral Final Armaours Amourls Amounts. {Hagalive)

§ 1arvaT 5 00B0T 0§ Md74AL 5 10AOSI F 1305421 1305771 B METEY 5 G156 51061802 5 14318
504,472 S3.556 1.067.028 &6 513 1,742 T 1,742 844 802,730 B3 134 1,635,684 47 60
335,025 299,506 B36.532 42T 1,241 569 1,241,580 530,042 569,209 1,150,251 52,08

a.024 21784 38808 15,351 108 @ 108,805 22,338 53,400 5,863 32926
29.098 24,263 53,381 00 138 432 156,432 a7.5a 08,004 195,585 B4t
238,585 305,416 547002 1858527 1.778.149 1.778.149 TAE. 164 736,403 1,547 653 230 436

5 1,252,993 § 1.3?9.2& 5§ 2682215 E 4431411 § 83ra02d 5§ 637I0D34 § 2A46686 25 2OABETZ S 5EH£H $ 537.%6
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EXFEMDITURES

Crivaienl POVETETRR T
Admiretinmon
Admirisialed ovethead
Hirpor|
Eunldireg department

Commenity gewsiopment

Finanes
Tochrnod oGy

Tatai generst gramment

Puishis aaifhy
Fire
Pafice:

Tolsl putlic safisy

Culhure and seerafion:

Arpueatic
HAecreaton
Paris. g cometory

Telad oulluey Bred recreatan

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

See auditars repen

CITY OF ONTARID, OREGON
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF PERSOMNAL SERVICES AND MATERIALS AND SERVICES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL, BY DEPARTMENT
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005

Parsonal Serdzas Malgng! ang Serdeas
Wanano with
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2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2005-06
2004-05
2003-04
2002-03
Prior years

See auditor's reporl.

CITY OF ONTARIO
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS

AND OUTSTANDING BALANCES

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

Add (Deduct)
Taxes Add Levy Discounts Deduct Taxes
Uncollected Extended Interest Interest and Uncollected
July 1, by Cancellations Tax June 30,
2008 Assessor Adjustmenls Collections 2009
$ - 3,015,448 (76,881) {2,809,717) 128,851
105,193 - 1,508 (45,493) 61,208
48,294 : 1,566 (18,623) 31,237
26,675 - 2,205 (16,624) 12,445
12,155 - 2,439 (13,854) 640
675 - 28 (411) 292
242 (56) (41) 145
226 - 14 {44) 196
3 183,460 3 SE{J‘I 5,449 ¥ (68987) $ (2,904,907) $ 235015

48




REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S COMMENTS

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-330 of the Minimum Standards for Audits
of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State in cooperation with the
Cregon State Board of Accountancy, enumerate the financial statements, schedules, comments,
and disclosures required in audit reporis. The required schedules, comments, and disclosures not
included in the preceding sedtion of this report are set forth as follows:

1.

G SYSTEMS AND

We found the accounting system of the City of Ontario, Oregon to be generally well
maintained and adequate for audit purposes. Tha intemnal controls for the Cily are generally
operaling as designed; however, there were material weaknesses and a significant
deficiency reported in accordance with SAS 112 and Governmental Auditing Standards.

I STMENTS

Our review of deposit and investment balances during the year ended June 30, 2008,
indicated that the City was in complianca with ORS 294 as il pertaing lo investment of public
funds.

LATERAL

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 295 provides that public officials must ensure the
banks they are doing business with are on the Office of the State Treasurer's (OST) list of
qualified depositories. Public officials are also required to report to OST all bank
depositories in which they deposit public funds.

Our review of the City's deposited funds did not disclose any instances where the City
deposited funds with unapproved depositories or did not properdy notify the OST of what
depositories held their public funds, as required by ORS 295.

INDEBTEDNESS

We reviewed compliance relating to short-ferm and long-term debt, including limitations on
the amount of debt, which may be incurred, liquidation of debt within the prescribed period of
time, and compliance with provisions of bond indentures or other agresments. We found no
instances in which the City had not complied with these legal or contractual provisions
relating to short-term or long-term debt.

BUDGET

We reviewed the supplemental budgets and resolutions for appropriation changes for the
second year of the biennial budget period. We also reviewed the preparation and adoption
of the budget for the 2009-11 biennial budgel. The City has complied with statulory
requirements in all material respects for the current and ensuing year's budgets, except as
follows:

The Motice of Budget Hearing publication for the 2009-11 biennial budget did not list the
$201,514 approved materials and services budget for the Golf Fund, however, the fotal fund
requirements weare listed correclly. The error appears to be a publishing emor by the
newspaper.

The budgeted expenditures for the Grants Fund were increased from the approved budget
by greater than 10%.
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10.

Expenditures for the 2007-09 biennium exceeded appropriations in the following amounts:

Grants Fund:

Materials and services £ 16,000
Capital Projects Fund:

Materials and services $ 6,640
Golf Course Fund:

Personal services 3 1559

Malenals and services § 2231

Debt service g 2217
Public Works Fund:

Debt service g 27027

The City established the levels of budgetary control at the personal services, materials and
services, capital outlay, operating contingencies, interfund transfers, and debl service levels
for all funds.

INSURANCE AND FIDELITY BONDS

We reviewed the City's insurance and fidelity bond coverage at June 30, 2008, and
ascertained that such policies appeared to be in force. We are not competent by training to
comment whether the insurance policies of the City in force at June 30, 2009, are adequate.
The City has complied with provisions of ORS 221.903 regarding bonding of City personnel.

PROGRAMS FUNDED F CES

We selected and tested, to the extent deemed appropriale, transactions, records, and
reports relative io programs fundad wholly, or partially, by other governmental agencies.

The rasults of our lests indicate, for the items tested, the City complied with the laws, rules,
and regulations pertaining to programs funded wholly, or partially, by other govemnmental
agencies and, for the items tested, financial reporis and related data were materally in
agreamant with and supported by the accounting records.

PUBLIC CONTRACTS AND PURCHASING

We have reviewed {he City's compliance with ORS 279, pertaining to the awarding of public
confracts and the construction of public improvements, Our review disclosed no conditions,
which we considered to be matters of noncompliance of the City's bidding procedures or
quote procedures,

HIGHWAY FUNDS

The City appears to have complied with the provisions of Article IX, Section 3a of the
Oregon Constitution and ORS Sections 294, 368, and 373 in regards to the expenditures of
moior vehicle use funds,

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTAEBILITY FOR INDEPENDE Y CIALS

This statemant is not applicable to the City of Ontaric.
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Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisars

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

December 17, 2010
To the Governing Body of the City of Ontario, Cregan:

We have audited the financial stalemenls of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ontario,
Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City of
Ontario, Oregon's basic financial statements and have issued our report therson, dated
December 17, 2010. We conducted our audit in aceordance with auditing standards generally
accepled in the United Stales of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States,

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Ontario, Oregon's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinions an the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the eifectiveness of the City of Ontario, Oregan’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectivenass of the City of Ontario,
Oregon’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal conirol over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would nol necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses, However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficizncies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider 1o be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatement on a limely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, that adversaly affects the City of Ontario,
Oregon's ability o initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that a misstaterent of the City of Ontario, Oregon's financial statements that
is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detacted by the City of Ontario, Oregon’s
internal control. We consider the following deficiencies lo be significant deficiencies in internal
control:
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Although the precedures over the safeguarding of cash assels have improved from the prior
year and the City did perform year end reconciliations, there were errors found in the
reconciliations and other adjustments required to correct the effecis from the prior year cash
adjusiments. In addition, there was onga large adjusiment required to reclassify amounls
belween accounis payable and oulstanding checks for June payroll and accounts payable
checks that were not released by year end.

The City's controls over the fiscal year end financial reporting process rely largely on manual
adjustments to record activity on the modified accrual basis of accounting. We found significant
adjustmenis reguired in the arsa of accounts receivable, which could be reduced in the fuiure
through secondary reviews of accruals and other year-end adjustments, a detailed review of
subsequent cash receipts for unrecorded ilems, and comparison of the June 30 year-end
balance sheet to the prior year amounts, while giving considaration to current expectations.

The City's capilal assel records do not include a detailed listing of capital assels by fund.
Additions and disposals are researched and recorded each year and depreciation expense is
recorded on a component basis. However, the lack of delailed records increases lhe risk of
misstatement of the net depreciable value of the capital assets and the risk of misappropriation
of assets. The City has informed us that they are currently working on a detailed capital asset
listing through the services of a third parly and they anlicipate that this detail will be in place for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

The City took over the operations of the golf course during the year and it appears that the
hiring of the golf course manager was done outside of the normal hiring procedures for the City.
It also does not appear that the employee went through the normal orientation process or
received sufficient training on Cily procedures. There were a number of errors found in refation
to the golf course operations, which include: instances where required purchase orders were
nol completed; year end inventory was not taken in a timely manner, and thare ware over
expenditures of appropriations in three expenditure categories.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remole likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the City of Ontario, Oregon’s intemnal control. We consider
the significant deficiencies over the safeguarding of cash assets, fiscal year end financial
reporling and the Cilty's capital asseis records mentioned sbove to also bs matenal
weaknesses.

Our consideration of the internal conftrol over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would nol necessarily
disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be matenal weaknesses, The
above items have been discussed with management and management agrees with the
comments.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Ontario, Oregon’s financial
statements are free of material missiatement, wa performed tesis of ils compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounis.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objeclive of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
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na instances of noncompliance or other matters thal are required fo be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, the audit

committee, management of the City of Ontario, Oregon, the Secretary of State, Division of
Audits, and the State of Oregon and is not intended lo be and should not be used by anyone

other than these specified parties.

et -aeer A s [P

Dicke§ and Tremper, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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